People's United Financial, Inc. Form DEF 14A March 07, 2018 Table of Contents

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

SCHEDULE 14A

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934

(Amendment No.)

Filed by the Registrant

Filed by a Party other than the Registrant

Check the appropriate box:

Preliminary Proxy Statement

Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))

Definitive Proxy Statement

Definitive Additional Materials

Soliciting Material Pursuant to §240.14a-12

People s United Financial, Inc.

(Name of Registrant as Specified In Its Charter)

(Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if other than the Registrant)

Payment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box):

No fee required.
Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(1) and 0-11.
(1) Title of each class of securities to which the transaction applies:
(2) Aggregate number of securities to which the transaction applies:
(3) Per unit price or other underlying value of the transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):
(4) Proposed maximum aggregate value of the transaction:
(5) Total fee paid:
Fee paid previously with preliminary materials.
Check box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing fo which the offsetting fee was paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.
(1) Amount previously paid:
(2) Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:

(3) Filing Party:

(4) Date Filed:

PROXY STATEMENT

2018 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

Table of Contents

<u>Proxy Summary</u>	1
Shareholders Entitled to Vote	1
Voting Procedures and Method of Counting Votes	1
Revocation of Proxies/Voting of Shares	3
Attending the Annual Meeting	3
Householding	3
Electronic Access to Proxy Materials	4
Corporate Governance	4
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management	8
Stock Ownership Guidelines for Directors and Executive Officers	8
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance	10
Proposal I: Election of Directors	10
Nominees for Director	11
Executive Officers Who are Not Directors	16
Transactions with Certain Related Persons	17
Board of Directors and Committees	18
Director Compensation	23
Director Compensation Table	24
Compensation Discussion and Analysis	25
Compensation Committee Report	41
Review of Compensation Related Risk	42
Executive Compensation Tables	42
Proposal II: Non-Binding Advisory Vote to Approve Compensation of Named Executive Officers	58
Pay Ratio Disclosure	59
Proposal III: Ratification of the Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	59
Audit Committee Report	60
Other Matters	61

March 7, 2018

Dear Shareholder:

On behalf of the board of directors of People s United Financial, Inc., I cordially invite you to attend our 2018 annual meeting of shareholders at 850 Main Street, Bridgeport, Connecticut on Thursday, April 19, 2018 at 10:00 a.m. The accompanying proxy statement details the actions on which you are asked to vote at the annual meeting. Please read it carefully.

Whether or not you choose to join us at the annual meeting, it is important that your shares are represented and voted at the meeting. I urge you to vote your proxy which you can do electronically online, by telephone or by mail. If you choose to vote by mail, please complete, sign and date the proxy card and return it promptly in the postage-paid envelope to ensure that your shares are represented. If you have any questions about your proxy card, voting procedures or other matters set forth in the proxy statement, please feel free to call our Investor Relations department at 203-338-7228.

On behalf of our board of directors, our management team and all of our employees, I want to thank you for your investment in People s United Financial and the continued opportunity to work for you.

Sincerely,

John P. Barnes

President and Chief Executive Officer

People s United Financial, Inc. 850 Main Street, P.O. Box 1580 Bridgeport, Connecticut 06601-1580 203-338-7171

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

TO BE HELD ON APRIL 19, 2018

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual meeting of shareholders of People s United Financial, Inc. (People s United) will be held on Thursday, April 19, 2018, at 10:00 a.m. local time at 850 Main Street, Bridgeport, Connecticut, for the following purposes:

- 1. To elect twelve directors;
- 2. To cast a non-binding advisory vote to approve the compensation of our named executive officers as disclosed in this proxy statement;
- 3. To ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the year ending December 31, 2018; and
- 4. To act on any other proposal that may properly come before the annual meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof.

We have fixed the close of business on February 23, 2018 as the record date for determination of shareholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the 2018 annual meeting or at any adjournment or postponement thereof. Record holders of People s United common stock as of the record date are entitled to vote at the annual meeting.

A list of the holders of People s United common stock entitled to vote at the annual meeting will be available for inspection on request by any People s United shareholder for any purpose germane to the annual meeting at our headquarters, located at 850 Main Street, Bridgeport, Connecticut 06604, during normal business hours beginning no later than ten days prior to the date of the annual meeting and continuing through the date of the annual meeting.

If you wish to attend the annual meeting in person, please read Attending the Annual Meeting later in the Proxy Statement for information about what you will have to bring with you in order to be admitted to the meeting.

We urge you to complete and return promptly the accompanying proxy, whether or not you plan to attend the annual meeting. You may cast your vote electronically, by telephone or instead by mail if you so choose.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Robert E. Trautmann, Secretary

Bridgeport, Connecticut

March 7, 2018

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to Be Held on April 19, 2018: This Proxy Statement and our Annual Report are available free of charge at www.proxyvote.com.

People s United Financial, Inc. 850 Main Street, P.O. Box 1580 Bridgeport, Connecticut 06601-1580 203-338-7171

PROXY STATEMENT

2018 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

PROXY SUMMARY

General

We are furnishing this proxy statement to our shareholders in connection with the solicitation of proxies by our board of directors for use at the 2018 annual meeting of shareholders to be held on Thursday, April 19, 2018 at 10:00 a.m. local time at 850 Main Street, Bridgeport, Connecticut. At the 2018 annual meeting, holders of our common stock, \$0.01 par value per share, will be asked to elect twelve directors; to cast a non-binding advisory vote to approve the compensation of our named executive officers as disclosed in this proxy statement; to ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the year ending December 31, 2018; and to act on any other proposal that may properly come before the annual meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof.

We are furnishing this proxy statement and the enclosed form of proxy to our shareholders beginning on or about March 7, 2018.

Proxies

The accompanying form of proxy is for use at the 2018 annual meeting if you will be unable to attend in person or wish to have your shares voted by proxy even if you do attend the meeting. Instead of completing the accompanying form of proxy, you may cast a vote electronically or by telephone, by following the instructions printed on the proxy card.

We will bear the entire cost of soliciting proxies. In addition to the solicitation of proxies by mail, we will request banks, brokers and other record holders to send proxies and proxy material to the beneficial owners of our stock and secure their voting instructions, if necessary. We will reimburse those record holders for their reasonable expenses in doing so. We may also use our regular employees, who will not be specially compensated, to solicit proxies from shareholders, either personally or by telephone, facsimile, other electronic means, or special or express delivery letter.

SHAREHOLDERS ENTITLED TO VOTE

Record Date and Voting Rights

The board of directors has fixed February 23, 2018 as the record date for determining our shareholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the 2018 annual meeting. Only holders of record of shares of common stock at the close of business on that date are entitled to notice of and to vote at the annual meeting. On the record date, there were approximately 17,500 holders of record of our common stock and 347,438,912 shares of our common stock outstanding.

VOTING PROCEDURES AND METHOD OF COUNTING VOTES

Quorum Requirements

Shares representing a majority of the votes entitled to be cast at the annual meeting must be present in person or by proxy at the annual meeting in order for a quorum to be present. Shares of common stock present but not voting, and shares for which proxies have been received but with respect to which holders of such shares

have abstained, will be counted as present for purposes of determining the presence or absence of a quorum for the transaction of business at the annual meeting. Shares represented by proxies returned by a bank or broker holding such shares in nominee or street name will be counted for purposes of determining whether a quorum exists, even if those shares are not voted on matters where discretionary voting by the broker is not allowed (known as broker non-votes).

Votes Required to Adopt Proposals

Each share of common stock entitles a holder of record on the record date to one vote on each matter to be presented at the annual meeting, and all such shares vote together as a single class. The voting requirements for each matter presented are as follows:

For a nominee to be elected as a director, more votes must be cast for that nominee than are cast against that nominee.

The affirmative vote of a majority of the shares present or represented by proxy and entitled to vote at the annual meeting is necessary for advisory approval of the compensation of our named executive officers as disclosed in this proxy statement. Your vote on this item is advisory and will not be binding. However, the board of directors and Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee (CNGC) expect to take the outcome of the vote into account in connection with future executive compensation decisions.

The affirmative vote of a majority of the shares present or represented by proxy and entitled to vote at the annual meeting is necessary to ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the year ending December 31, 2018.

Effect of Abstentions and Broker Non-Votes

Abstentions and broker non-votes will have no effect on the outcome of voting for the election of directors, on the advisory vote regarding approval of the compensation of our named executive officers disclosed in this proxy statement, or on the ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm.

Voting by Shareholders of Record

If you held your People s United shares directly through our transfer agent, Computershare, as of the record date, you can vote your shares using any of the following methods:

Online as prompted by the menu found at www.proxyvote.com; follow the instructions to obtain your records and submit an electronic ballot. Please have your Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials (the Notice) or proxy card in hand when you access the voting site.

By telephone call 1-800-690-6903 and then follow the voice instructions. Please have your Notice or proxy card in hand when you call.

By mail if you received printed proxy materials and would like to vote by mail, complete and sign the accompanying proxy card and return it in the postage paid envelope provided.

QR Code by scanning the QR Code on your proxy card or Notice with your mobile device.

In person if you attend the annual meeting, you may vote in person at the meeting. Please see Attending the Annual Meeting for the requirements you will have to follow if you plan to come to the annual meeting.

Voting by Other Shareholders

If you held your People s United shares through a bank or broker (known as beneficial ownership), you will receive instructions directly from your bank or broker telling you how you can vote your shares. You can also vote your shares in person at the annual meeting, but you will need to ask your bank or broker to give you a

2

legal proxy in order to do so. The voting instruction form you receive from your bank or broker is not a legal proxy. Please see *Attending the Annual Meeting* for the requirements you will have to follow if you plan to come to the annual meeting.

REVOCATION OF PROXIES/VOTING OF SHARES

You can revoke a vote cast by proxy at any time before the proxy is exercised. If you are a shareholder of record, you can do so by submitting to our corporate secretary a written notice of revocation or a properly executed proxy bearing a later date, by casting a subsequent vote by telephone or electronically, or by attending the meeting and voting in person. Attendance at the annual meeting will not in and of itself constitute revocation of a proxy or other previously cast vote. You should address any written notices of revocation and other communications with respect to the revocation of proxies to: People s United Financial, Inc., 850 Main Street, Bridgeport, Connecticut 06604, Attention: Corporate Secretary.

If you are not a shareholder of record, the materials sent to you by your bank or broker will tell you how you can change your voting instructions. If you wish to change your vote by voting your shares in person at the annual meeting, you will need to ask your bank or broker to give you a legal proxy in order to do so.

All shares of common stock represented by properly submitted proxies received pursuant to this solicitation, and not subsequently revoked, will be voted at the annual meeting in the manner specified by the shareholder submitting the proxy. If no specification is made, the proxies will be voted **for** the election of each of the nominees for director identified in this proxy statement; **for** the advisory vote to approve the compensation of our named executive officers as disclosed in this proxy statement; **for** ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the year ending December 31, 2018; and in the discretion of the proxy holders, as to any other matter that may properly come before the annual meeting.

ATTENDING THE ANNUAL MEETING

If you plan to attend the annual meeting in person, you will need to bring a form of official photo ID (such as a driver s license), along with either your Notice, proxy card or other proof of stock ownership with you to the meeting. If you are a beneficial owner but not a shareholder of record, you must present both a form of official photo ID and proof of ownership consisting of a bank or brokerage account statement.

We may refuse admission to anyone who is not a shareholder or does not comply with these requirements.

HOUSEHOLDING

SEC rules and regulations permit householding, meaning that we are allowed to deliver only one copy of the Notice or Annual Report on Form 10-K, notice of annual meeting and proxy statement to two or more shareholders who share an address. If you previously consented to householding, you will receive one copy of the Notice or Annual Report on Form 10-K, notice of annual meeting and proxy statement for all residents who own shares of our common stock. If you wish to revoke your consent to householding and receive a separate copy of the Notice or Annual Report on Form

10-K, notice of annual meeting and proxy statement, you may direct your request to Broadridge by calling 1-866-540-7095 or by writing to People s United Financial, Inc., c/o Broadridge, 51 Mercedes Way, Edgewood, NY 11717. If you wish to request extra copies free of charge of our Annual Report on Form 10-K or proxy statement or if you are a shareholder of record who receives multiple copies of the Notice or Annual Report on Form 10-K, notice of annual meeting and proxy statement, and you would prefer to receive only one copy of these materials per household, please send your request to Investor Relations, People s United Financial, Inc., 850 Main Street, 1th Floor, Bridgeport, CT 06604 or call Investor Relations with your request at 203-338-7228. If you hold your shares through a bank or broker and are receiving multiple copies of the Notice or Annual Report on Form 10-K, notice of annual meeting and proxy statement, you may be able to request householding by contacting your bank or broker.

ELECTRONIC ACCESS TO PROXY MATERIALS

This proxy statement and our 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K are available at www.proxyvote.com. Instead of receiving copies of our future Form 10-K, proxy statements, proxy cards and, when applicable, Notices, by mail, we encourage you to elect to receive an email that will provide electronic links to our proxy materials and also will give you an electronic link to the proxy voting site. Choosing to receive your future proxy materials online will save us the cost of producing and mailing the proxy materials or Notices to you and help conserve natural resources. You may sign up for electronic delivery by visiting http://enroll.icsdelivery.com/PBCT. If you have agreed to electronic delivery of proxy materials, but wish to receive printed copies, please contact our Investor Relations department at the phone number or address provided above.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Board Leadership Structure; Board s Role in Risk Oversight

Leadership Structure. The board separated the position of Chief Executive Officer from that of chairman in 2008. The board believes that good corporate governance requires having an independent director assume a formal board leadership role. Our bylaws require that the non-executive chairman of the board be an independent director, as that term is defined pursuant to the listing requirements established by The Nasdaq Stock Market and Section 10A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Our chairman occupies the same position on the board of directors of our principal operating subsidiary, People s United Bank, N.A. (which we refer to as the Bank). Our bylaws therefore also require that the non-executive chairman be independent as defined in the rules and regulations of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation relating to the independence of directors.

George P. Carter has served as non-executive chairman of the board since 2008. In this role, Mr. Carter s responsibilities include chairing meetings of the board of directors; approving board agendas and meeting schedules and ensuring appropriate information flow; acting as liaison between the non-management members of the board and management; meeting periodically with the Chief Executive Officer for informal discussions concerning major issues involving our business and operations; and providing input to the CNGC concerning the performance of the Chief Executive Officer.

Mr. Carter has developed, during his years of service to the Company, valuable insight into our operations and businesses. He has developed a deep expertise in banking matters and overall familiarity with the Company and its business lines over more than three decades of service to the Company. Under our Corporate Governance Principles as updated in 2017 and as discussed below under the heading Nominees for Director George P. Carter, Mr. Carter would be required to retire from the Board of Directors as of the 2018 Annual Meeting of shareholders absent a waiver of the retirement age by the Board. The Board determined in 2017 that it was in the best interests of the Company to waive the retirement age for Mr. Carter to continue to serve until the Annual Meeting in 2018. In recognition of his extensive service on board committees and his expertise and thorough understanding of our businesses, the Board of Directors has determined that it continues to be in the best interests of the Company to waive the retirement age for Mr. Carter as provided in such policy to serve as a director, if re-elected, until the 2019 Annual Meeting. He will continue to serve on the board and committees of the Company and the Bank as identified below. A copy of the Corporate Governance Principles is available on our website at www.peoples.com under the heading Investor Relations Corporate Governance Governance Documents.

Board s Role in Risk Oversight. Given the importance of the Bank s operations and the possible impact on us of risks associated with Bank activities, we and the Bank have adopted an integrated risk management oversight structure designed to ensure that all significant risks are actively monitored by the board or a board-level committee. All members of our board of directors are also members of the board of directors of the Bank.

Role of the Enterprise Risk Committee. The Enterprise Risk Committee (ERC) of the board has been established to assist the board in fulfilling its responsibility to oversee our enterprise risk management (ERM)

4

framework and associated policies and practices. The ERC has been assigned authority to oversee management s implementation of our risk management process; to make recommendations to the full board concerning risk appetite; and to assess our corporate strategy in light of our risk appetite. The Enterprise Risk Committee s role is to oversee and monitor management s implementation of our risk-management process; management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an effective risk management framework.

The ERC is chaired by an independent director, Janet M. Hansen, who has been designated by the board as a risk management expert. In addition, it is comprised of, among other directors, our independent Chairman of the board and a member of our Audit Committee (Mr. Carter) and the chairs of other Company and Bank board committees as follows: Nancy McAllister (Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee), John Dwight (Treasury and Finance Committee), Kevin Bottomley (Trust Committee) and Mark Richards (Loan Review Committee). The Enterprise Risk Committee coordinates its oversight of enterprise risk with the Bank s Loan Review Committee (which oversees certain aspects of credit and concentration risk); the Treasury and Finance Committee (which oversees aspects of liquidity and interest rate risk); the Bank s Trust Committee (which oversees fiduciary risk); and the Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee (which oversees incentive compensation risk). Additional information regarding the involvement of board committees other than the Enterprise Risk Committee is provided below. Ultimate responsibility for oversight of risk throughout the entire enterprise rests with the Enterprise Risk Committee.

The primary responsibilities of the ERC include: (i) approving and overseeing our ERM policy; (ii) ongoing monitoring of information demonstrating our administration of established ERM policy; (iii) evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of our ERM framework; (iv) monitoring the activities of the Chief Risk Officer and the Executive Risk Oversight Committee (EROC), a management-level committee comprised of senior executives including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer; and (v) reviewing information provided by management and the Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee concerning the integration of risk management and control objectives into management goals and our compensation structure.

The ERC also has responsibility to review management s assessments concerning specific risks, including: credit risk; price/interest rate risk; liquidity risk; incentive compensation risk; reputation risk; strategic risk; operational risk; compliance and regulatory risk; risk related to mergers and acquisitions, including risks associated with the due diligence process and integration risk; fiduciary risk and technology risk. The ERC will also receive additional updates and progress reports concerning the management of risks that contain elements that, in the opinion of management and/or the Committee, warrant an additional level of management reporting and oversight. The ERC has responsibility for oversight of our operational risks. These include risks arising from fraud, error, or the inability to deliver products or services and manage information. It also monitors risk mitigation processes related to information and physical security, business continuity and compliance.

Our Chief Risk Officer is the head of the Risk Management division and is the individual designated by the board to administer our ERM program. Primary responsibilities of the Chief Risk Officer include: (i) formulation of our risk appetite statement and framework; (ii) establishment of appropriate processes to ensure that deviations from risk appetite triggers and limits are identified, reported to executive management and the Enterprise Risk Committee, and corrective action is taken in a timely manner; (iii) development and implementation of our ERM program framework; (iv) establishment, implementation and administration of certain risk management policies; and (v) ensuring appropriate communication of and training with respect to risk management-related topics. The Chief Risk Officer monitors compliance with the triggers and limits established in the risk appetite statement on an ongoing basis, reporting quarterly to EROC and the Enterprise Risk Committee concerning compliance with these parameters. In the event a risk appetite trigger or limit is breached (even if the breach is subsequently corrected), or it is apparent that the trigger or limit level is being approached, the Chief Risk Officer reports the matter to EROC and the Enterprise Risk

Committee at the next scheduled meeting of each group (or sooner, if deemed appropriate by the Chief Risk Officer) and, working with the applicable business unit, develops an action plan to address the matter. The action plan is presented for approval by EROC and the ERC at the next scheduled meeting of the applicable committee.

5

We maintain policies and procedures for the reporting by employees of risk-related issues, violations or breaches to a senior member of the Risk Management division, and for the escalation of such matters to the Chief Risk Officer. Under our Code of Conduct, any employee who in good faith reports an issue is entitled to protection against retaliation for reporting the issue.

In addition to the ERC s general risk oversight role, responsibility for detailed oversight of specific types of risks has been delegated to various board committees, as follows:

Internal Control Risk. In addition to its oversight of all aspects of our annual independent audit and the preparation of our financial statements, the Audit Committee has been assigned responsibility for oversight of risks associated with internal controls, legal risks, compliance with applicable laws and regulations, ensuring the establishment and implementation of codes of conduct and overseeing responses to reports of examination.

Price/Interest Rate/Liquidity Risks. The Treasury and Finance Committee has been charged with overseeing management of our interest rate, liquidity, currency price and similar market risks. In fulfilling its responsibilities the Committee oversees the implementation of our asset-liability management policies and activities undertaken in connection with such policies. The Treasury and Finance Committee monitors our liquidity positions and liquidity risk management activities, interest rate risk management process and overall interest rate risk profile, the sensitivity of earnings under varying interest rate scenarios and considers the risks associated with potential changes in market interest rates. The Treasury and Finance Committee also monitors economic and interest rate trends with a view toward limiting any potential adverse impact on our earnings.

The Treasury and Finance Committee oversees our investment activities to ensure compliance with both regulatory requirements and applicable policy. It reviews significant financial risk exposures in our investment and derivatives portfolios, and the steps management is taking to monitor and control such exposures. It also monitors management of our treasury functions by the Treasury group, including: management of our securities portfolio; short-term investments and securities purchased under agreements to resell; wholesale borrowings; and in general our overall funds management processes. The Treasury group acts as the centralized funding center for all business segments, which includes managing interest rate risk through the use of derivative financial instruments.

Credit Risk. The Bank s Loan Review Committee oversees and monitors risk related to the Bank s lending activities. Among other things, it reviews and approves lending strategies and policies; approves asset quality standards with respect to all lending areas, including standards for loan concentrations; and monitors concentrations of credit by product, industry and geographic area. The Loan Review Committee approves appropriate general underwriting policies with respect to all lending areas and monitors adherence to such policies, and approves credit policies. The Loan Review Committee also monitors asset quality trends, reviews classified loans, charge-offs and delinquencies and approves strategies and policies regarding the acquisition, management and disposition of foreclosed property.

Risks Associated with Compensation Programs. The Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee has responsibility for oversight of our various compensation programs. As part of its duties, the Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee is responsible for evaluating whether any of these programs contain features that promote excessive risk-taking by employees, either individually or as a group. In addition, the Enterprise Risk Committee will review management s assessment of risks posed by incentive compensation programs.

Communications with the Board

Shareholders who wish to communicate with the board of directors or with individual members of the board may address correspondence to the board or to a director, c/o Corporate Secretary, People s United Financial, Inc., 850

Main Street, Bridgeport, CT 06604. The corporate secretary will review all correspondence addressed to the board or to a director, and will handle each item in accordance with procedures that have been approved by the independent directors.

6

The policies described in this section do not apply to shareholder proposals made pursuant to Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 14a-8, or to communications relating to those shareholder proposals.

Governance Principles and Related Matters

Corporate Governance Principles. The board of directors has adopted a formal statement of governance principles as a summary of the board sphilosophy and expectations with respect to our corporate governance process. This document and each of the other codes, policies and statements described below are available in the Investor Relations section of our website at www.peoples.com under the heading Investor Relations Corporate Governance Governance Documents.

Code of Conduct. We have a written Code of Conduct which articulates our philosophy with respect to ethical conduct in the workplace and establishes standards for behavior, including standards with respect to compliance with laws and regulations, actual or potential conflicts of interest, fairness, insider trading, use of People s United or customer information and public and financial disclosure. This Code of Conduct is applicable to all directors, executive officers and other employees of People s United. Additionally, we have adopted a Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers that supplements the more general Code of Conduct and conforms to the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and NASDAQ listing standards. We will disclose within four business days any substantive changes in or waivers of the Code of Ethics granted to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions, by posting such information on our website as set forth above rather than by filing a Current Report on Form 8-K. In the case of a waiver of our Code of Conduct for an executive officer or a director, the required disclosure also will be made available on our website within four business days of the date of such waiver.

Insider Trading Policy. We maintain an Insider Trading Policy that applies to all directors, executive officers and other employees of the Company. The policy is designed to prevent insider trading or allegations of insider trading, and to protect the Company s reputation for integrity and ethical conduct.

Prohibition on Hedging and Pledging. Our Insider Trading Policy prohibits directors, executive officers and other employees from engaging in any hedging activity involving our securities or from pledging our securities as collateral for margin purchases or a loan.

Director Independence. The board has expressed the intent that a substantial majority of board members shall at all times qualify as independent under NASDAQ listing standards. The board annually in February considers the independence of each member of the board, and has determined that all but two of the Company s twelve directors are independent for purposes of applicable NASDAQ rules.

Director Tenure. The board has not established limits on the number of terms that may be served by a director because it believes our best interests are served when it is represented by individuals who have developed, over time, valuable insight into our operations and businesses. Our board is currently comprised of twelve directors and following the 2018 annual meeting, if the nominees are elected, the board will be comprised of twelve directors, ten of whom are independent. Of those twelve directors, there is a mix of years of service and tenure with the Company between longer-tenured directors, directors who have served for less than nine years and more recently elected directors. In addition, two board committees are chaired by directors who joined the Company within the last five years with Nancy McAllister chairing the Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee and William F. Cruger, Jr. chairing the Audit Committee. We believe this composition of board tenure and Committee leadership is in the best interests of the Company and shareholders because it balances appropriate levels of experience and knowledge of our businesses with continuity and stability over business cycles while also providing for newer

perspectives and contributions.

Director Resignation Policy. The board has adopted a policy requiring any candidate for re-election as a director to tender his or her resignation if he or she is not elected by a majority of the votes cast by shareholders in an uncontested election.

7

Incentive Compensation Clawback Policy. The board has adopted a policy requiring each current and former executive officer to forfeit any erroneously awarded incentive-based compensation received by any such officer during the three completed fiscal years preceding the date on which the Company is required to prepare an accounting restatement due to the material non-compliance of the Company with any financial reporting requirement under the federal securities laws.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

The following table sets forth information as of February 13, 2018 with respect to beneficial ownership of our common stock by any person or group as defined in Section 13(d)(3) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 who is known by us to be the beneficial owner of more than five percent of the common stock.

Name and Address of Beneficial Owners	Number of Shares; Nature of Beneficial Ownership ⁽¹⁾	Percent of Common Stock Owned ⁽²⁾
BlackRock, Inc.	27,027,645 ⁽³⁾	7.8%
55 East 52 nd Street		
New York, NY 10055		
State Street Corporation	39,567,569(4)	11.4%
State Street Financial Center		
One Lincoln Street		
Boston, MA 02111		
The Vanguard Group, Inc.	35,795,401 ⁽⁵⁾	10.3%
100 Vanguard Boulevard		
Malvern, PA 19355		
Wells Fargo & Company	19,015,550 ⁽⁶⁾	5.5%
420 Montgomery Street		
San Francisco, CA 94163		

- (1) Based on information in the most recent Schedule 13D or 13G filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, unless otherwise indicated.
- (2) Shares reported as owned as of the date indicated on the Schedule as filed, expressed as a percentage of shares outstanding as of February 13, 2018.
- (3) BlackRock, Inc. reports having sole voting power with respect to 24,141,468 of these shares, and sole dispositive power with respect to all of these shares.
- (4) State Street Corporation reports having shared voting and dispositive power with respect to all of these shares.
- (5) The Vanguard Group, Inc. reports having sole voting power with respect to 476,059 of these shares, shared voting power with respect to 58,359 of these shares, sole dispositive power with respect to 35,257,333 of these shares, and shared dispositive power with respect to 538,068 of these shares.
- (6) Wells Fargo & Company reports having sole voting power with respect to 165,779 of these shares, shared voting power with respect to 18,644,418 of these shares, sole dispositive power with respect to 165,779 of these shares, and shared dispositive power with respect to 18,849,772 of these shares.

We do not know of any other person who is the beneficial owner of more than 5% of our common stock as of the specified date.

STOCK OWNERSHIP GUIDELINES FOR DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Stock Ownership Guidelines. We have adopted guidelines for stock ownership by directors in order to encourage members of the board to increase their ownership of our common stock over time. We revised these

8

guidelines in 2017 and effective April 19, 2017, directors with at least five years of board service are expected to own shares of the Company s common stock with an aggregate value of at least \$400,000. The stock ownership of all members of the Board of Directors with at least five years of service was in compliance with applicable guidelines as of December 31, 2017. Ms. McAllister, Mr. Cruger and Ms. Chwick joined the board in September 2013, September 2014 and September 2017, respectively, and have not yet reached five years of board service.

We have also adopted guidelines for stock ownership by our senior executive officers. In general, the Chief Executive Officer is expected to own shares valued at five times his base salary, while the other senior executive officers are expected to own shares valued at three times base salary. Compliance with these guidelines is expected to be achieved within a five-year phase-in period from the date of an executive s promotion or hire. All senior executive officers were in compliance with applicable guidelines as of December 31, 2017.

Security Ownership of Management

The following table sets forth, as of February 13, 2018, the beneficial ownership of common stock and preferred stock by each director, each nominee for election as a director, each named executive officer (as defined below) who is not also a director, and by all directors and executive officers as a group. Except as indicated in the notes following the table, each person has sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares listed as being beneficially owned by such person.

	Common	Stock	Series A P Sto		
	Amount and Nature	Am	Amount and Nature		
	of	Percent	of	Percent	
	Beneficial Ownershi	p ^{(d})f Cla B ene	ficial Ownersh	nip6f Class	
Directors and Nominees					
John P. Barnes	2,285,672	0.7%			
Collin P. Baron	238,293	*			
Kevin T. Bottomley	137,852	*	2,000	*	
George P. Carter	230,848	*			
Jane Chwick		*			
William F. Cruger, Jr.	24,246	*			
John K. Dwight(a)	190,317	*			
Jerry Franklin	92,949	*			
Janet M. Hansen	135,707	*			
Nancy McAllister	26,210	*	8,000	*	
Mark W. Richards ^(a)	182,688	*	8,000	*	
Kirk W. Walters ^(b)	1,072,668	*	40,000	*	
Named Executive Officers(c)					
Lee C. Powlus	746,042	*			
R. David Rosato	575,376	*			
Jeffrey J. Tengel	557,966	*			
All Directors, Nominees and Executive					
Officers as a Group (20 persons)	8,832,598	2.5%	58,000	0.6%	

- * Denotes beneficial ownership of less than one-half of one percent of the outstanding shares of common stock or preferred stock.
- (a) Does not include additional shares of common stock owned by a non-qualified benefit trust for the benefit of Messrs. Dwight (62,261 shares) and Richards (122,794 shares) with respect to which the named directors have neither investment nor voting authority.
- (b) Common stock total includes shares held in trusts in which Mr. Walters is trustee.
- (c) The named executive officers consist of (1) the Chief Executive Officer (Mr. Barnes) and the Chief Financial Officer (Mr. Rosato), and (2) the three most highly compensated executive officers of the Company other than the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer who were serving as executive officers at December 31, 2017.

9

- (d) Does not include performance share awards discussed later in this proxy statement under the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section and as listed in the Executive Compensation Tables. Shares pursuant to these awards vest and will be issued, if at all, after a three year performance period.
- (e) Applicable percentage ownership of preferred stock is based on 10,000,000 shares of Series A preferred stock outstanding as of February 13, 2018.

Stock ownership totals include shares of common stock that are: subject to forfeiture if certain conditions are not satisfied (Column A); held indirectly through benefit plans (Column B); or subject to acquisition whether upon the exercise of stock options or otherwise within 60 days from February 13, 2018 (Column C), as follows:

	\mathbf{A}	В	C
Directors:			
John P. Barnes	77,305	8,326	1,823,267
Collin P. Baron	5,450		
Kevin T. Bottomley	5,450		
George P. Carter	5,450		
Jane Chwick			
William F. Cruger, Jr.	5,450		
John K. Dwight	5,450		
Jerry Franklin	5,450		
Janet M. Hansen	5,450		
Nancy McAllister	5,450		
Mark W. Richards	5,450		
Kirk W. Walters	16,623	10,179	782,325
Named Executive Officers:			
Lee C. Powlus	18,325	5,358	652,173
R. David Rosato	18,285	3,554	494,520
Jeffrey J. Tengel	20,578	2,471	442,009
All Directors, Nominees and Executive Officers as a Group (20			
persons)	280,757	135,170	6,105,660

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires our directors and executive officers, and persons who own more than 10% of our common stock, to file initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of the common stock with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Based solely on a review of the reporting forms we received, and written representations that no other reports were required, we believe that during 2017 all reports that were required to be filed under Section 16(a) were filed on a timely basis.

PROPOSAL I: ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Our certificate of incorporation provides for the annual election of directors for one-year terms expiring at the next annual meeting. Our certificate of incorporation provides that there will be between five and fifteen members of the

board of directors, as fixed by resolution of the board. Jane Chwick was elected to the Board in September, 2017 and the board currently consists of twelve members. The board of directors has resolved that there will be twelve members of the board following the 2018 annual meeting. Therefore, at the annual meeting, twelve directors will be elected to serve for one-year terms. Each incumbent director has been nominated for re-election. Each nominee has consented to being named in this proxy statement and to serve as a director if elected. Directors elected at the annual meeting will serve until their respective successors have been elected and qualified. The persons named in the proxy intend to vote shares under the authority granted by the proxy for the election of all nominees named below. If any of the nominees should be unable to serve, the persons named in the proxy will use their discretion in voting the shares represented by such proxies.

The board of directors recommends that shareholders vote for the election of each of the nominees listed below.

10

Certain information concerning the continuing nominees for election, including ages as of March 1, 2018 and the business experience of each during the past five years, is set forth below. Information regarding each director s length of service as a director includes such person s term of service as a director of the Bank, if he or she was elected prior to 2007.

NOMINEES FOR DIRECTOR

John P. Barnes, age 62, was named President and Chief Executive Officer of People s United on July 22, 2010 after serving as interim President and Chief Executive Officer since April 25 of that year. Mr. Barnes previously served as Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Administrative Officer for People s United following the acquisition of Chittenden Corporation in early 2008. Mr. Barnes served as an Executive Vice President of Chittenden since 1997. He became a member of our board in 2010 and is a member of the Enterprise Risk and the Treasury and Finance Committees and a member of the Bank s Loan Review and Trust Committees.

Mr. Barnes currently serves as a member of the board of directors of the Financial Services Roundtable, a national advocacy organization for the financial services industry. Mr. Barnes has worked in the financial services industry since 1983, when he joined Chittenden after five years with the FDIC in Boston. He became Senior Vice President and Chief Credit Policy Officer in 1988. In 1990 he was named to head the Credit Policy and Administration division. In 2002, he was appointed Executive Vice President in charge of the newly formed Chittenden Services Group, which included Information Technology, Operations, Mortgage Banking, Cash Management and other centralized services for the corporation. Mr. Barnes is a graduate of Northeastern University and received his MBA from the University of Vermont.

The board believes that Mr. Barnes, as our chief executive officer, has a critical role to play as a representative of management on the board. For this reason, the board expects that for as long as Mr. Barnes serves as our chief executive officer, the board will recommend him for election to our board of directors. Mr. Barnes also serves as the chairman of The People s United Community Foundation.

Collin P. Baron, age 70, is a member of the law firm of Pullman & Comley, LLC, a full-service law firm with offices in major Connecticut cities and in White Plains, N.Y. He has been affiliated with the firm since 1973. Mr. Baron became a director in 2001. He serves as a member of the Treasury and Finance Committee. He also serves as a member of the Bank s Loan Review and Trust Committees.

A graduate of the University of Virginia and the George Washington University National Law Center, Mr. Baron has more than 40 years of experience in corporate, health care and banking law. He is a member of the Connecticut Health Lawyers Association and American Health Lawyers Association. He is a member of the Banking Law Committee of the American Bar Association. He has also been an active member of the greater Bridgeport business, legal and philanthropic community.

In evaluating Mr. Baron s qualifications for board service, the board determined that Mr. Baron s expertise in corporate and banking law, coupled with his past experience as a member of the Bank s and our board of directors and thus his familiarity with our operations and our Connecticut market, qualify him to serve on our board and enhance the overall mix of skills among board members.

Kevin T. Bottomley, age 65, served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Danvers Bancorp, Inc. and its principal subsidiary, Danversbank, from 1996 until the merger of Danvers with People s United in July 2011.

Mr. Bottomley became a member of our board on July 1, 2011 when the merger became effective. He is a member of the Enterprise Risk Committee and of the Bank s Loan Review Committee and chairman of the Bank s Trust Committee. Mr. Bottomley also serves as chairman of the board of directors of the People s United Community Foundation of Eastern Massachusetts, Inc.

Mr. Bottomley has extensive experience in the financial services industry. In addition to his executive positions with Danvers, Mr. Bottomley had served as Chairman of the Danvers board of directors since 2003.

11

Prior to joining Danvers, he was the Chief Lending Officer and Executive Vice President at Boston Private Bank & Trust Company. Mr. Bottomley began his career at Bankers Trust in 1976 in the Asia Pacific Division. Subsequently, he joined First National Bank of Boston where he worked in the Reverse Multinational Group and in its London Branch. Mr. Bottomley earned his undergraduate degree from Harvard College in 1974 and his MBA from the University of Virginia in 1976.

Mr. Bottomley s qualifications to serve on the board include his demonstrated experience in executive leadership, strategic planning and governance of a public company. As a resident of northeastern Massachusetts, Mr. Bottomley adds geographic diversity to the board, and is a valuable source of insight and knowledge regarding the banking market in this portion of our market area, including the greater Boston region.

George P. Carter, age 81, is the former President of Connecticut Foods, Inc. Mr. Carter was first elected to the board in 1976. He serves as our non-executive chairman, and also currently serves as a member of the Audit, Compensation, Nominating and Governance and the Enterprise Risk Committees, and the Bank s Loan Review Committee. Effective as of the April 20, 2017 committee meetings, Mr. Carter continued to serve as a member of the Audit Committee after previously serving as its chairman.

Mr. Carter has significant experience as a member of both the board of directors and the audit committee of a financial services company, having served as a member of the Bank s board of directors since 1976 and as a member of its audit committee since 1981. He became Chairman of the Bank s audit committee in 1987 and chairman of the Audit Committee of People s United at the time of its formation in 2007. Mr. Carter is a graduate of Michigan State University, with a BS in business and has been a business owner since 1969. He is active in community and philanthropic affairs and serves as a member of the board of directors of The People s United Community Foundation and of Bridgeport Hospital.

In considering Mr. Carter s contributions to the board and his skills and qualifications for board service, the board noted that over his more than 35 years of board service Mr. Carter has developed a level of expertise in banking matters and an in-depth familiarity with People s United and the Connecticut market and our various businesses that enhance his contributions to the board. The board also cited the benefit to the board s deliberative process provided by Mr. Carter s long-term perspective, noting that Mr. Carter has been a member of the board throughout a number of business cycles. If re-elected as a director, it is anticipated that Mr. Carter will serve as a director until the 2019 annual meeting of shareholders pursuant to the waiver discussed above under the section Corporate Governance Board Leadership Structure.

Jane Chwick, age 55, was elected to the Board of Directors of the Bank and the Company on September 21, 2017. Ms. Chwick was a partner at Goldman Sachs where she had a 30-year career in technology, including most recently as the Co-Head of the technology division. As Co-COO she was responsible for financial business planning, setting the technical strategy and the management of an 8,000-person organization within the firm. While at Goldman, Ms. Chwick served on many governance committees, including the firm's Finance Committee, the firmwide New Activity Committee and the Technology Risk Committee, and she was co-chair of the Technology Division Operating Committee. Ms. Chwick was also the Co-founder and Co-CEO of Trewtec, Inc., providing corporate directors, chief executive officers and chief technology officers with the information they need to improve their oversight of a company s technology division. She currently serves on a number of boards including Voya Financial and MarketAxess where she is the chair of the Technology, Innovation and Operations Committee and the Risk Committee, respectively. In addition, Ms. Chwick is on the Executive Board of Trustees of the Queens College Foundation and until recently served on the board of Girls Who Code. She earned an undergraduate degree in Mathematics from Queens College, and an MBA with a concentration in quantitative analysis from St. John's University.

Ms. Chwick is a member of the Company s Enterprise Risk Committee and serves as a member of the Bank s Trust Committee. The board believes that Ms. Chwick s extensive technology leadership experience, gained in a global financial services firm, combined with her in-depth knowledge of the New York market and industry insight, bring valuable skills and strategic perspective to the board. Ms. Chwick was recommended to serve on the Board of Directors by a non-management member of the board.

12

William F. Cruger, Jr., age 59, became a member of the board of directors in September 2014. He was until August 2013 Vice Chairman of Investment Banking at J.P. Morgan Chase & Co., a leading global financial services firm. His responsibilities included senior client relationship management and transaction leadership with a primary focus on financial institutions, among other sectors. Mr. Cruger was Managing Director, Financial Institutions Group at J.P. Morgan Chase from 1996 until 2011 when he was elevated to the position of Vice Chairman. He also ran the firm s investment banking practices in Japan from 1991 to 1996, in Latin America from 1989 to 1991, and in Emerging Asia from 1984 to 1988. He began his career at J.P. Morgan Chase in 1982.

Currently Mr. Cruger is a member of the board of MarketAxess Holdings Inc., serving as a member of the Audit Committee and the Chairman of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, and of Virtu Financial, Inc., serving as Chairman of the Audit Committee. He has also served on the boards of Archipelago, Capital IQ and Credittrade.

Mr. Cruger currently serves as Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Treasury and Finance Committee. The board believes that Mr. Cruger s diverse experience in investment banking at a global financial services firm, his extensive knowledge of financial institutions and financial markets including the New York market, his leadership roles as a director of other financial services firms, and his international business experience bring critical skills and strategic insight to the board.

In the course of his professional career, Mr. Cruger has developed extensive experience in the evaluation of financial statements and has a thorough understanding of generally accepted accounting principles and financial reporting procedures. He currently serves as a member of the audit committee of two public companies. Based on this background and experience, the board has identified Mr. Cruger as an audit committee financial expert.

John K. Dwight, age 73, became a member of the board of directors on January 1, 2008 following completion of the merger of Chittenden Corporation into People s United. Mr. Dwight had served as a director of Chittenden since 1999. He is the founder and Chairman of Dwight Asset Management Company, a registered investment advisor managing over \$60 billion in fixed income assets for insurance companies, stable value funds, and other institutional clients. Mr. Dwight is a former director of Old Mutual Asset Management US Holdings, Inc., a founding member of the Stable Value Investment Association and the Vermont Security Analysts Chapter. In addition, Mr. Dwight is a past trustee of St. Lawrence University and the Shelburne Museum.

Mr. Dwight has more than 20 years—experience as a director of a publicly-held bank holding company, having served as a director and member of the audit committee of Eastern Bancorp, Inc. (parent of Vermont Federal Bank), a director of Vermont Financial Services Corporation (parent of Vermont National Bank), and a director of Chittenden (parent of multiple banks).

In evaluating Mr. Dwight squalifications as a director, the board considered the contribution that his extensive expertise in the area of asset management and his considerable financial acumen has made to his board service. The board determined that he brings to his role as director a strong proficiency in the area of analyzing and evaluating both company financial statements and complex financial instruments, which enhances his service not only as a member of the board but also as a member of its Enterprise Risk Committee and as chair of the Treasury and Finance Committee, and as a member of the Bank s Trust Committee. The board determined that the diversity of perspective of the board as a whole benefits from Mr. Dwight s extensive experience with and knowledge of the greater Burlington, Vermont market and community.

Jerry Franklin, age 70, is the President and Chief Executive Officer of Connecticut Public Broadcasting Inc., a position he has held since 1985. Mr. Franklin was elected to the board of directors in 1997 and is a member of the

Audit Committee. Mr. Franklin also serves as a member of the Bank s Loan Review Committee.

Mr. Franklin has spent his entire professional career in the communications field. Following his honorable discharge from the U.S. Air Force in 1970, Mr. Franklin received a bachelor of science in political science and journalism from Georgia Southern University and a master of arts in telecommunications management from

13

Indiana University. Mr. Franklin s position with Connecticut Public Broadcasting involves overall responsibility for all aspects of that corporation s business, including its financial condition and performance. Specifically, Mr. Franklin has responsibility for oversight of that company s financial management, investment policies, and budget.

The board has concluded that it benefits from Mr. Franklin s guidance as to the Connecticut market and the perspective that he provides by virtue of his professional background and his experience as chief executive officer of a non-profit organization. In addition, the board considered the contributions Mr. Franklin has made to the board by virtue of his experience as a director of the Bank (and a current member of its Loan Review Committee) and later People s United, a member of the Audit Committee and a former member of the Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee.

Janet M. Hansen, age 75, was employed as Executive Vice President of Aquarion Company, a diversified water management company, from 1995 until her retirement in March 2005. Ms. Hansen served as Aquarion s Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer from 1992 through 1999. Aquarion was, until its acquisition by Kelda Group, plc in 2000, a publicly-held company listed on the New York Stock Exchange. Ms. Hansen was President and Chief Executive Officer of Aquarion s principal operating subsidiary, Aquarion Water Company, from 2000 to 2003. She served in a variety of other financial positions during her 29 year tenure with Aquarion in addition to the positions specifically noted above.

Ms. Hansen became a member of the board of directors in February 2004. She is Chairwoman of the Enterprise Risk Committee and a member of the Audit and Treasury and Finance Committees. Ms. Hansen also served on the board of directors of Pennichuck Corporation (a publicly-owned holding company for a group of water utilities and related businesses) until its sale in late January 2012. Ms. Hansen is a graduate of Salem State College and has an MBA in Finance from the University of Connecticut. She is also a graduate of the Advanced Management Program and the International Senior Management Program at Harvard University.

In determining Ms. Hansen s qualifications for the position of director, and her contributions to the board s overall mix of skills and attributes, the board noted that Ms. Hansen s financial background, her knowledge of our Connecticut market and her past experience as Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer of a publicly-held company and as director and member of the audit committee of Pennichuck Corporation enhance her contribution to the board s Audit and Treasury and Finance Committees.

In her various roles at Aquarion, Ms. Hansen had extensive experience with the preparation and evaluation of financial statements. She has a detailed understanding of generally accepted accounting principles, internal controls, and financial reporting procedures. She is also intimately familiar with the role of a public company audit committee, having not only worked closely with Aquarion s audit committee, but also having served on our Audit Committee and the audit committees of Pennichuck Corporation and Gateway Bank (acquired in 1994 by a subsidiary of a predecessor to Bank of America Corporation). For these reasons, the board has identified Ms. Hansen as an audit committee financial expert. The board has also designated Ms. Hansen as a risk management expert. Ms. Hansen is also active in the Greater Bridgeport community, serving as a member of the audit committee of Bridgeport Hospital.

Nancy McAllister, age 58, became a member of the board of directors in September 2013. She is the Chairwoman of the Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee, and a member of the Enterprise Risk and Treasury and Finance Committees since November 2012. Ms. McAllister also serves as a member of the board of trustees of PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust (PMT), a specialty finance company that invests primarily in residential mortgage loans and mortgage-related assets. She serves as Chair of the Finance Committee, and is a member of the Compensation and Risk Committees at PMT.

Until May 2011, Ms. McAllister was Americas Co-Head, Financial Institutions Group, Investment Banking, at Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC, a diversified financial services firm. Her group covered banks, insurance companies, specialty finance, asset management and financial technology institutions. From 1991 to September 2008, Ms. McAllister was employed by Lehman Brothers, Inc., where she held a variety of executive

positions, including managing director and co-head of the depository institutions and debt capital markets groups. Ms. McAllister began her career as a commercial banker in 1981 at Bankers Trust. She graduated from the University of Virginia with a degree in Economics.

In evaluating Ms. McAllister s qualifications as a director, the board noted that she is a seasoned business executive with 30 years of banking experience including deep knowledge of the capital markets and significant experience in financial services. In addition, Ms. McAllister is a resident of New York and is familiar with the New York market, an area of increasing importance to our business.

Mark W. Richards, age 72, became a member of the board of directors effective January 1, 2008 immediately following completion of the merger of Chittenden into People s United. Mr. Richards had served as a director of Chittenden from 1999 until its merger with People s United. He is President of The Richards Group in Brattleboro, Vermont, an independent, full-service insurance and financial services firm specializing in providing risk management, employee benefits and investment advisory services to individuals, families, and businesses primarily in Vermont and New Hampshire. Until 2008, Mr. Richards was also vice president and the majority owner of Lyon Travel Agency, a privately-owned, nationally-recognized provider of travel management services. Mr. Richards is a graduate of Williams College and served as an officer in the U.S. Navy.

Mr. Richards is a member of the Audit, Enterprise Risk and the Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committees. He also serves as chairman of the Bank s Loan Review Committee.

The board has determined that by virtue of his background in insurance-related financial services, Mr. Richards provides the board with an important perspective, especially with respect to the Bank s commercial banking division, which includes an insurance brokerage subsidiary. The board also considered that Mr. Richards has extensive experience in our Vermont market with more than 20 years experience as a director of a public company and director of a financial services organization, having formerly served as a director of Vermont Financial Services Corporation (parent of Vermont National Bank) from 1988 to 1999, and Chittenden (parent of multiple banks) from 1999 until Chittenden s merger into People s United effective January 1, 2008. In addition, the board considered Mr. Richards past experience as a member of the Bank s Trust Committee.

Mr. Richards is a resident of southern Vermont and an active member of the greater Vermont/New Hampshire community. Mr. Richards brings an element of geographic diversity to his service on the board and is able to provide insight and counsel to the entire board with respect to this portion of the Bank s market area.

Kirk W. Walters, age 62, joined People s United as an executive officer and member of the board of directors on March 16, 2011. He served as Chief Financial Officer through December 31, 2014 at which time he became a Senior Executive Vice President with responsibility for corporate development and strategic planning. Prior to joining People s United, Mr. Walters served as Senior Executive Vice President and a member of the board of directors of Santander Holdings USA, Inc., the parent company of Sovereign (now Santander) Bank. He joined Sovereign in February 2008 as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and served as interim President and Chief Executive Officer from October 2008 until Banco Santander acquired the bank in February 2009.

Prior to joining Sovereign, Mr. Walters was Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Chittenden Corporation from 1996 to 2008. From 1989 to 1995, he held a series of executive positions at Northeast Federal Corporation in Hartford, Connecticut, including Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer. From 1984 to 1989, Mr. Walters worked for CalFed, Inc. in a variety of financial positions, including Senior Vice President and Controller. Before joining CalFed, he worked in the corporate finance group at Atlantic Richfield Corp. from 1981 to 1984. Mr. Walters is a member of the Enterprise Risk Committee and the Bank s Loan Review and Trust Committees.

Mr. Walters, who holds an undergraduate degree in accounting from the University of Southern California, has worked in the banking industry for more than 35 years, much of it in the Northeast. This experience and his former position as our chief financial officer are significant factors in the board s evaluation of Mr. Walters qualifications for service as a director.

Except as set forth above, during the past five years no director or nominee has had a principal occupation or employment with us or any of our subsidiaries or other affiliates. No director or nominee is related by blood, marriage or adoption to any of our executive officers or any executive officer of our subsidiaries or other affiliates.

With the exception of Messrs. Barnes and Walters, our board has affirmatively determined that each person nominated for reelection as a director at the 2018 annual meeting is independent for purposes of the applicable listing standards of The Nasdaq Stock Market, including with respect to committee membership. Our board has also determined that each of Messrs. Bottomley, Carter, Cruger, Franklin and Richards, and Ms. Chwick, Hansen and McAllister is independent for purposes of Section 10A(m)(3) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act). In making its independence determinations, the board considered and reviewed all information known to it (including information identified through annual directors questionnaires). In determining that Mr. Baron is independent, the board considered the fact that Mr. Baron is a principal at a law firm that does business with the Bank and which leases office space from the Bank, and determined that these relationships do not compromise Mr. Baron s independence or ability to serve effectively as a director of the Company.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS WHO ARE NOT DIRECTORS

Galan G. Daukas, age 54, has been a Senior Executive Vice President, Wealth Management since December 2013. In this position, Mr. Daukas has responsibility for all aspects of our Wealth Management business, including Private Banking and the People s Securities, Inc. brokerage business. Prior to joining People s United, Mr. Daukas was employed by Washington Trust Wealth Management since 2005, serving as Executive Vice President, responsible for all investment management, trust, financial planning, mutual fund management and insurance units. Mr. Daukas earned his bachelor s degree at Dartmouth College and his master s degree at Trinity College. He is a Chartered Financial Analyst and a Certified Financial Planner.

Sara M. Longobardi, age 54, is Senior Executive Vice President, Retail Banking. She is responsible for our branch network and residential and consumer lending areas as well as for ensuring the overall customer experience. From 2004 until April 2014, she served as senior vice president for Customer Relationship Development in the Retail and Business Banking division, where she developed, implemented and managed the strategy to drive the expansion and retention of profitable customer relationships. Ms. Longobardi joined People s United in 1991. Ms. Longobardi holds a bachelor s degree in finance from the University of Illinois.

David K. Norton, age 62, has been a Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer since October 2009 and is responsible for all human resources functions. Prior to joining People s United, Mr. Norton was a Senior Vice President, Human Resources at The New York Times Co. since 2006. For more than five years prior to that date, Mr. Norton was employed by Starwood Hotels and Resorts, where he was an Executive Vice President, Human Resources. Mr. Norton holds a bachelor s degree in Business Administration from Michigan State University and completed the Advanced Management Program at Northwestern University.

Lee C. Powlus, age 57, has been a Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Administrative Officer since May 2011 with oversight of Information Technology, Project Management, Information Security, Operations and eBusiness, Business Services and Real Estate Services. Mr. Powlus, who joined People s United in 2008, was an Executive Vice President and Chief Administrative Officer since September 2010. He previously served as Director of Information Technology for Chittenden Corporation. Mr. Powlus received his MBA and bachelor s degree from the University of Vermont.

R. David Rosato, age 56, is Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of People s United. Mr. Rosato has been CFO of People s United Bank since April 2014 and CFO of People s United Financial, Inc. since January 2015. Mr. Rosato joined People s United in 2007 as Senior Vice President and Treasurer responsible for all treasury functions including interest-rate risk management and modeling, fixed income portfolio management, derivative activities, capital management, as well as wholesale funding and

16

liquidity. Prior to joining People s United, he was Treasurer at Webster Financial Corp. Mr. Rosato earned both his MBA and a bachelor s degree in business and economics from The University of Maryland and is a Chartered Financial Analyst.

Chantal D. Simon, age 53, has been a Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Risk Officer since July 2010. She is responsible for overall risk management, including loan review, credit, compliance, BSA/AML, workout and operational risk functions at People s United. Prior to joining People s United in 2009, Ms. Simon spent 20 years at Merrill Lynch & Co. Most recently, she was Chief Risk Officer of Merrill Lynch Bank USA and Head of Risk Management of the U.S. Regulated Bank Entities at Merrill Lynch. Ms. Simon holds a bachelor s degree in Economics and Applied Mathematics from Brown University and a MBA from Harvard Business School.

Jeffrey J. Tengel, age 55, joined People s United in February 2010 and has been a Senior Executive Vice President, Commercial Banking since January 2011. Mr. Tengel has responsibility for Commercial Banking, including Commercial and Industrial, Commercial Real Estate, Equipment Finance, Treasury Services, Specialty Finance and Insurance. Prior to joining People s United, Mr. Tengel was an Executive Vice President at PNC Financial Services Group since January 2009 and previously at National City Corporation. Mr. Tengel holds a bachelor s degree from Marquette University and received his MBA from Case Western Reserve University.

Robert E. Trautmann, age 64, is Senior Executive Vice President and General Counsel of People s United Bank and People s United Financial, Inc. He is responsible for the direction of the Company s legal operation. Mr. Trautmann has served in various capacities for People s United since 1994. Prior to joining People s United, Mr. Trautmann was with the corporate securities and banking groups of the New Haven law firm of Tyler Cooper and Alcorn. Previously, he was with the New York City law firms of Shea & Gould and Olwine, Connelly, Chase, O Donnell and Weyher. Mr. Trautmann holds a bachelor s degree in philosophy from Washington University and a law degree from Washington University School of Law.

TRANSACTIONS WITH CERTAIN RELATED PERSONS

We engage in banking transactions (including loans and other extensions of credit) in the ordinary course of business with various business organizations with which certain of our directors or executive officers are affiliated as officers, partners, members and shareholders. We also extend credit to our directors and executive officers and to members of their immediate families to the extent permitted under applicable laws and regulations. Such transactions are made in the ordinary course of business; are made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable loans with persons not affiliated with us; and do not involve more than the normal risk of collectability or present other unfavorable features.

From time to time, we may engage in transactions other than those described in the preceding paragraph and in which a director, executive officer or family member has or may have a direct or indirect material interest. We maintain a written related party transaction policy that specifies the standards for review and approval of these types of transactions. The policy requires the affected director or executive officer and the business unit or department leader responsible for a proposed transaction of this type to notify our General Counsel as soon as possible after becoming aware that such a transaction is being proposed. If our General Counsel determines that the proposed transaction is a reportable related party transaction for purposes of the policy, he will bring it to the attention of the Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee for its review and consideration. The Committee will evaluate the transaction based on all of the relevant facts and circumstances, including: the potential benefits to us; the potential impact on a director s independence (where applicable); the availability of other sources for comparable products or services; the

terms of the proposed transaction and the terms that would be available to unrelated third parties; and whether the proposed transaction would pose an improper conflict of interest for the affected director or executive officer. The CNGC may decide to refer the matter for consideration by the full board. No member of the Committee, or of the board in the case of a referral, may participate in the review or consideration of any transaction in which he or she may have an interest.

17

In the event a related party transaction has occurred but has not been previously approved in accordance with the policy, the transaction will also be submitted by the CNGC for its review. If the transaction is ongoing, the CNGC will evaluate all available options, including ratification, amendment or termination of the transaction. If the transaction has been completed, the CNGC will determine whether additional action is necessary and will request our General Counsel to investigate the reasons why the transaction was not previously reported to the General Counsel for possible submission to the Committee for approval.

Our related party transaction policy supplements our other policies such as those designed to ensure compliance with Federal Reserve Regulation O which governs lending to directors, executive officers and other insiders.

Except as described in the first paragraph of this section, during 2017 we did not engage in any transactions with any person or entity under circumstances where the director, executive officer or family member had a direct or indirect material interest in the transaction.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES

Meetings of the Board of Directors and its Committees

During 2017, our board of directors held 11 meetings. Each director attended more than 75% of the aggregate of (a) the total number of meetings of the board held while he or she was a director and (b) the total number of meetings held by all committees of the board on which he or she served.

The board of directors encourages all directors to attend the annual meeting of shareholders. All twelve of the individuals serving as directors at the time of the 2017 annual meeting of shareholders attended that meeting.

Board of Directors Committees

Our board of directors has four standing committees: the Audit Committee; the Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee; the Enterprise Risk Committee; and the Treasury and Finance Committee. The charter of each of these committees is posted on our website (www.peoples.com) under the heading Investor Relations Corporate Governance Board Committee Structure.

Audit Committee. The Audit Committee was established in accordance with Section 3(a)(58)(A) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Each member of the Audit Committee is independent, as that term is defined in Rule 5605(a)(2) of the listing standards of The Nasdaq Stock Market. Each member of the Audit Committee also satisfies the more stringent definition of independence required for members of audit committees generally, as set forth in Rule 5605(c)(2)(A) of the listing standards of The Nasdaq Stock Market. The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring our accounting practices and internal controls, including the supervision of an annual audit of our financial statements by independent registered public accountants.

Our board of directors has adopted a written charter for the Audit Committee, including provisions recognizing the specific audit committee responsibilities imposed by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, Securities and Exchange Commission rules implementing that Act, and the listing standards of The Nasdaq Stock Market. A copy of the charter is available on our website at www.peoples.com under Investor Relations Corporate Governance Board Committee Structure: Audit Committee.

The board of directors has determined that William F. Cruger, Jr. and Janet M. Hansen each qualifies as an audit committee financial expert within the meaning of applicable Securities and Exchange Commission regulations.

Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee. Each member of this committee is independent, as that term is defined in Rule 5605(a)(2) of the listing standards of The Nasdaq Stock Market. Each member of the Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee also satisfies the more stringent standards for members of compensation committees generally, as set forth in Rule 5605(d)(2)(A) of the listing

18

standards of The Nasdaq Stock Market. The CNGC is responsible for making policy decisions concerning our compensation and benefit programs, and conducts periodic performance reviews of our senior and executive officers. The CNGC also recommends nominees for election as directors to the full board of directors. In addition, it assists directors in their responsibilities with respect to establishment and oversight of the corporate governance framework of the Company. A copy of the Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee charter is available on our website at www.peoples.com under Investor Relations Corporate Governance Board Committee Structure: Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee.

The CNGC engages an independent compensation consultant to assist it in the annual compensation process. The consultant is retained by and reports to the CNGC. The consultant provides expertise and information about competitive trends in the employment marketplace, including established and emerging compensation practices at other companies. The consultant also provides survey data, and assists in assembling relevant comparison groups for various purposes and establishing benchmarks for particular components of core compensation from the survey and comparison group data. The CNGC engaged the firm of Willis Towers Watson to serve as its independent compensation consultant during 2017.

Management may engage one or more consultants to provide additional information, advice, and professional services related to other aspects of the compensation and benefits function. These consultants work primarily with management but may also communicate directly with the CNGC. The consultant engaged to assist the CNGC in the annual compensation process may also be engaged to perform some of these additional services. We paid Willis Towers Watson \$10,504 for services other than those relating to executive and director compensation in 2017.

The CNGC has adopted a policy requiring that the terms of engagement of the compensation consultant be set forth in an annual engagement agreement, with such agreement to set forth the scope of work to be undertaken in connection with matters relating to executive compensation. The engagement agreement also requires the compensation consultant to provide periodic reports to the Committee of any work performed by the consultant for us or any of our affiliates, other than work relating to executive compensation. The purpose of this policy is to ensure that the Committee maintains an appropriate level of control over the compensation consultant and its activities on our behalf. Willis Towers Watson s work on our behalf and on behalf of the Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee has not raised any conflicts of interest.

The sections below entitled Director Compensation and Compensation Discussion and Analysis include a description of the CNGC s processes and procedures for the consideration and determination of director and executive compensation matters, including the roles of the independent compensation consultant and management in those processes and procedures.

Enterprise Risk Committee. The ERC assists the board of directors in its oversight of management s implementation of our enterprise-wide risk management process, makes recommendations to the board concerning risk tolerance, and assesses our corporate strategy in light of our risk tolerance. More information about the ERC can be found in this proxy under the section titled Corporate Governance Board Leadership Structure Board s Role in Risk Oversight. A copy of the ERC charter is available on our website at www.peoples.com under Investor Relations Corporate Governance Board Committee Structure: Enterprise Risk Committee.

The board of directors has determined that chairwoman Janet M. Hansen qualifies as a risk management expert within the meaning of applicable regulations.

Treasury and Finance Committee. The Treasury and Finance Committee assists the board of directors in its oversight of our asset-liability management goals and strategy. This Committee has primary oversight and monitoring

responsibility of management s implementation of the Company s Treasury strategy and policies. In addition, the Committee coordinates its oversight of interest rate and liquidity risk with the ERC. A copy of the Treasury and Finance Committee charter is available on our website at www.peoples.com under Investor Relations Corporate Governance Board Committee Structure: Treasury and Finance Committee.

The following chart provides information about board committee membership and the number of meetings that each committee held in 2017.

		Compensation,		
		Nominating and	Enterprise	Treasury &
	<u>Audit</u>	Governance	Risk	<u>Finance</u>
John P. Barnes				
Collin P. Baron				
Kevin T. Bottomley				
George P. Carter				
Jane Chwick				
William F. Cruger, Jr.	Chair			
John K. Dwight				Chair
Jerry Franklin				
Janet M. Hansen			Chair	
Nancy McAllister		Chair		
Mark W. Richards				
Kirk W. Walters	11	12	11	7

Number of meetings in 2017

The current committee membership is reflected in the chart above. Effective with the April 20, 2017 committee meetings, Mr. Cruger became the Chair of the Audit Committee and Mr. Carter remained a member of that Committee. Ms. Chwick joined the Enterprise Risk Committee upon her election to the board.

In addition to the committees listed above, certain members of our board serve as members of the two committees of the board of directors of the Bank. The Bank s Loan Review Committee currently consists of Messrs. Barnes, Barnes, Bottomley, Carter, Franklin, Richards (chairman) and Walters; the Bank s Trust Committee currently consists of Messrs. Barnes, Bottomley (chairman), Baron, Chwick, Dwight, Franklin and Walters. The Loan Review Committee met eleven times and the Trust Committee met four times in 2017.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

The Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee of our board of directors is composed solely of individuals who are neither officers nor employees of People s United, or any of our direct or indirect subsidiaries. The current members of the CNGC are Nancy McAllister (chairwoman), George P. Carter and Mark W. Richards. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017, there were no interlocks, as defined under the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission, between members of the Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee or our executive officers and entities with which such persons are affiliated.

Director Nominations

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws provide that nominations of candidates for election as directors may be made only by the board of directors or by a shareholder of record.

Shareholders of record may nominate candidates by following the nomination provisions specified in our certificate of incorporation and our bylaws. Shareholders may submit nominations in writing to People s United Financial, Inc., 850 Main Street, Bridgeport, Connecticut 06604, Attention: Corporate Secretary, between 90 and 120 days in advance of the next annual meeting at which directors will be elected or, if directors are to be elected at a special meeting of shareholders held for that purpose, no later than the close of business on the seventh day following the earlier of (i) the date on which notice of the special meeting was first given to shareholders, or

20

(ii) the date on which a public announcement of that meeting was first made. Each shareholder nomination must contain the information required by our certificate of incorporation and bylaws including: the name and address of the shareholder of record who intends to appear in person or by proxy to make the nomination; the name and address of each person being nominated; a description of all arrangements or understandings between the shareholder submitting the nomination and each nominee and any other person (including the name of such person) concerning the nomination to be made by the shareholder; such other information regarding each nominee proposed by such shareholder as would have been required to be included in a proxy statement filed pursuant to the proxy rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission; and the consent of each prospective nominee to serve as a director if elected.

Role of Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee. The CNGC identifies possible candidates for board service and is charged with responsibility for evaluating proposed nominations, including those proposed by shareholders. The Committee selects those nominees who will be presented for election by the shareholders, or appointment by the board of directors in the case of vacancies arising between annual meetings.

Identification of Proposed Nominees. Prospective candidates for election to the board of directors can be identified in several ways. First, any current member of the board whose term is expiring, who is not disqualified from serving an additional term by reason of age pursuant to our Corporate Governance Policy, and who has indicated his or her willingness to stand for re-election is automatically considered to have been proposed as a possible candidate.

Second, prospective candidates for board service may be identified by members of the Committee through informal recommendations from other members of the board or other parties. The Committee may retain the services of a search firm to assist it in identifying appropriate candidates for board service. Finally, we have in the past and may in the future appoint one or more members of the board of an acquired institution to our board.

Evaluation of Proposed Nominees. In evaluating the qualifications of proposed candidates for nomination for election to the board, including candidates recommended by shareholders, the CNGC will consider the following factors:

The Committee has also established minimum qualifications for board service, which are applied to all potential candidates, including current board members proposed for re-election. The CNGC will not nominate any person for election to the board of directors if, in the opinion of the Committee:

actual or apparent conflicts of interest exist that would substantially interfere with the ability of such person to fulfill his or her duties as a director;

the person would not, or could not, effectively represent the best interests of People s United and all of its shareholders;

board service would be prohibited under any applicable law or regulation, including, but not limited to, federal banking regulations prohibiting interlocking directorships; or

the nomination, including any nomination by a shareholder, did not comply with the requirements of Section 5.06 of our certificate of incorporation or our recently amended bylaws.

In addition to the minimum qualifications outlined above, in evaluating proposed nominees, the CNGC will consider the following factors:

whether, in the opinion of the Committee, the nominee exhibits personal qualities, including personal and professional integrity, judgment and collegiality, that will ensure that the nominee will work effectively with the rest of the board in serving the long-term best interests of People s United and its shareholders;

the skills, personal attributes and professional qualifications of the nominee, in light of the total mix of skills, personal attributes and professional qualifications found within the board as a whole;

the extent to which the nominee would enhance the diversity of perspective and life experience among members of the board;

21

whether, in the opinion of the Committee, the nominee has demonstrated a commitment to the betterment of the communities that we serve; and

whether the nominee would be considered independent for purpose of service on the board or any of its committees. Lack of independence will not, by itself, render a candidate unqualified for board service; however, it is the board s intention that a substantial majority of board members shall at all times qualify as independent under the listing standards of The Nasdaq Stock Market and any other applicable laws or regulations.

Within this general framework, the weight given by the CNGC and by each Committee member to any particular factor may differ. For example, the evaluation process for a current board member being considered for re-election will focus on the individual s personal qualities and skills, as reflected in his or her actual performance as a director. The CNGC evaluation of a candidate proposed to be newly-elected to the board might give greater weight to the individual s professional qualifications in light of the mix of professional qualifications found within the board as a whole.

The CNGC would expect to follow a somewhat different process for evaluating the qualifications of a candidate who is a current board member proposed for re-election or is proposed for appointment to the board in the context of an acquisition, compared to the process it would follow in the case of a newly-identified candidate. In the case of current board members proposed for re-election, a more in-depth evaluation would have been performed at the time the individual was first proposed for election. Additionally, the CNGC has personal knowledge of the individual s strengths and weaknesses as a board member, and does not need to solicit information from third parties or conduct interviews.

The evaluation process for directors appointed to the board in the context of an acquisition would also be simpler than the process for evaluating candidates recommended by other board members or shareholders, because we may be contractually obligated to select a candidate from among the members of the board of the entity being acquired. In this instance, the evaluation process consists of reviewing information about the professional and business experience of board members who have expressed an interest in the position. Potential candidates will also meet with the Chairman of the board and the Chief Executive Officer. The CNGC then makes its selection based on feedback provided by the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and based on Committee members meetings with a candidate, and its evaluation of the candidates—qualifications and personal qualities, based on the factors outlined above.

The Committee seeks candidates who will bring a diversity of perspective and life experience to their board service, and it does not restrict its definition of diversity to any particular personal attribute, such as race or gender. The Committee has taken this approach because it recognizes that there are a myriad of personal characteristics, including not only race and gender but also attributes such as physical disability, national origin, geographic location, socio-economic background, professional experience, religious affiliation and prior military service that may contribute to an individual s diversity of perspective. Because the Committee s definition of diversity is broadly defined, it does not have a policy requiring consideration of any particular personal attribute or attributes in evaluating the qualifications of potential candidates.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Compensation of the board of directors is established by the board, upon recommendation of the Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee. Directors who are employed by us or any of our affiliates are not entitled to additional compensation for board or committee service. Effective April 20, 2017, certain committee and per meeting attendance fees were revised and those fees are reflected in the table below. The non-employee directors receive compensation according to the following table:

Annual Fees:	
Cash Retainer (all members)	\$ 27,000
Equity Compensation (all members)	95,000
Chairman of the Board	165,000
Committee Chairman:	
Audit Committee	\$ 17,500
Enterprise Risk Committee	15,000
All Other Committees	10,000
Per-Meeting Attendance Fees:	
Board meetings (all members)	\$ 1,200
Committee meetings (all members)	1,200

Members of the board of directors of the Bank receive additional compensation for service as members of that board and its committees. However, no separate compensation is paid to a director of the Bank who attends a board meeting that is held jointly with a board meeting of People s United and who is compensated for that meeting.

A director who, by invitation, attends a meeting of a committee of which he or she is not a regular member will be paid the same attendance fee as is payable to members of that committee. From time to time, Mr. Cruger may perform certain additional services in his capacity as chairman of the Audit Committee without a meeting of the Audit Committee (for example, meetings with representatives of our independent registered public accountants). In such cases, he receives an amount equal to the chairman s regular Audit Committee meeting attendance fee.

In addition to cash fees, non-employee directors also receive compensation in the form of our common stock under the People s United Financial, Inc. Directors Equity Compensation Plan. Each director who is not an employee is granted an annual award of shares of our common stock based on a target dollar value of \$95,000. These grants are made immediately following each annual meeting of shareholders. A person appointed as a director between annual meetings is eligible for a full or partial grant of an annual award at the time of his or her appointment, in the discretion of the CNGC. No stock options may be granted pursuant to the Directors Equity Compensation Plan. A total of 144,001 shares remained available for issuance as stock grants pursuant to this Plan as of February 28, 2018. Information about vesting requirements applicable to shares awarded pursuant to this Plan appear in the text following the table headed Directors Equity Compensation Plan appearing below.

Non-employee directors may also receive compensation in the form of stock awards and stock options under the 2014 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended and restated in 2017 (hereinafter the 2014 Long-Term Incentive Plan). The board of directors does not intend to make recurring grants under this Plan to members of the board, or otherwise to use this Plan as a routine source of equity compensation for directors. No grants were made to directors in 2017 under

this Plan.

Cash dividends payable with respect to shares of common stock issued to directors under the Directors Equity Compensation Plan and, when applicable, under the 2014 Long-Term Incentive Plan are paid in the same amount and at the same time as dividends are paid to shareholders generally. Stock dividends, stock splits and similar transactions will have the same effect on shares of stock issued pursuant to the Directors Equity Compensation Plan and, when applicable, under the 2014 Long-Term Incentive Plan as on all other outstanding shares of our common stock.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION TABLE

The following table sets forth information relating to the compensation of our directors during 2017. Amounts shown in the table include compensation paid to the named individuals as directors of the Bank.

Director Compensation⁽¹⁾

	 s Earned or id in Cash	Stoc	k Awards		
	$(\$)^{(2)}$	(\$) (3)	7	Total (\$)
Collin P. Baron	\$ 65,000	\$	96,206	\$	161,206
Kevin T. Bottomley	78,770		96,206		174,976
George P. Carter	260,225		96,206		356,431
Jane Chwick	15,150				15,150
William F. Cruger, Jr.	77,425		96,206		173,631
John K. Dwight	77,031		96,206		173,237
Jerry Franklin	70,550		96,206		166,756
Janet M. Hansen	86,550		96,206		182,756
Richard M. Hoyt	19,100				19,100
Nancy McAllister	82,350		96,206		178,556
Mark W. Richards	102,950		96,206		199,156

- (1) The columns disclosing option awards, non-equity incentive plan compensation, all other compensation and changes in pension value and nonqualified deferred compensation earnings have been omitted from the table because no director earned any compensation during 2017 of a type required to be disclosed in those columns.
- (2) Includes annual cash retainer, Committee chair retainer (if applicable), per meeting fees and mileage reimbursement for directors (if applicable).
- (3) Reflects grant-date value (\$17.65 per share) of 5,450 shares awarded on April 20, 2017, pursuant to the Directors Equity Compensation Plan, to each director who was continuing to serve as a director. Ms. Chwick was elected to the board in September, 2017 and Mr. Hoyt chose not to stand for re-election at the April 20, 2017 annual meeting. Accordingly, the stock awards column does not include a director equity compensation award in 2017 for Ms. Chwick or Mr. Hoyt.

Information about shares awarded under equity compensation plans in 2017 or in prior years that had not vested as of December 31, 2017 is as follows (values determined by reference to the \$18.70 closing price of our common stock on December 29, 2017):

Directors Equity Compensation Plan

Unvested Shares Outstanding at Dec. 31, 2017
Number Aggregate Value

Each non-employee director (other than Ms. Chwick)

5,450

101,915

Shares of common stock issued under this plan become vested on the earliest to occur of (a) the first anniversary of the grant date, (b) the date of the annual meeting of shareholders in the year following the grant date, (c) the date a director s board service terminates due to death or disability, or (d) a change in control of People s United. These shares are not subject to any post-vesting transfer restriction period. As of February 28, 2018, a total of 49,050 shares issued pursuant to the Directors Equity Compensation Plan remained unvested.

No stock or stock option grants were made in 2017 to directors under any other equity compensation plan maintained by the Company. No shares awarded to directors under any other equity compensation plan in prior years remain unvested.

Prior to 2008, Messrs. Dwight and Richards deferred a portion of their director compensation pursuant to a non-qualified deferred compensation plan maintained by Chittenden for the benefit of its directors. We assumed

24

responsibility for this plan in 2008. Account balances for Messrs. Dwight and Richards under this plan are deemed invested in shares of our common stock, and future distributions from the plan will be made to Messrs. Dwight and Richards in the form of shares of our common stock rather than in cash. For the period from January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017, the value of Mr. Dwight s and Mr. Richards accounts under this plan decreased by \$124,305 and \$260,452, respectively. The change in value during the year reflects the effect of scheduled distributions made to each of them from the plan during 2017, changes in the market price of our stock and the effect of the deemed reinvestment of dividends paid on an equivalent number of shares of our stock.

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

This section includes information about our executive compensation practices, and includes information about compensation paid to our executives by our subsidiaries and affiliates, including our named executive officers (NEOs) who appear in the Summary Compensation Table. Our NEOs are:

Named Executive Officer	Title
John P. Barnes	President and Chief Executive Officer
Lee C. Powlus	Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Administrative Officer
R. David Rosato	Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Jeffrey J. Tengel	Senior Executive Vice President, Commercial Banking
Kirk W. Walters	Senior Executive Vice President, Corporate Development and Strategic Planning

Executive Summary.

Our compensation program is based on pay for performance principles and designed to reward the named executive officers based on their level of management responsibility, the ability to direct employees toward the achievement of corporate goals and individual contribution and performance. Key features include:

Compensation aligned with the interests of shareholders.

Both company-wide results and individual performance impact compensation for the executives.

The majority of our executives compensation mix is variable or at risk, with the variable components of compensation linked to our performance against pre-established metrics and share price movement.

Our variable compensation plans encourage executives to consider the impact their decisions have on both the short and long-range time horizons.

2017 was a noteworthy year for the company. We reported operating earnings of \$346 million or \$1.04 per common share—the highest in the bank—s 175-year history. The company has taken specific actions to enhance financial performance, such as the recent closing of three successful acquisitions, the divestiture of a non-strategic business, various investments in organic growth capabilities and maintaining tight control of expenses. The result of these efforts was a widening of our net interest margin, improvement in operating leverage and increases in profitability metrics. Financial highlights for 2017 included:

For the year, the company had strong financial performance. Our executives compensation is closely aligned with our performance, and our incentive compensation payouts for 2017 reflected our performance over the past year.

For 2017, direct compensation for our NEOs was comprised of the following elements:

	Base Salary	Short-Term Incentive Plan	Performance Share Units	Stock Options Restricted Stock
--	-------------	---------------------------	----------------------------	--------------------------------

Participants

All Named Executive Officers

Purpose Provide competitive compensation opportunities to reward, motivate and retain

Pay for Short-Term

Pay for Long-Term Performance

Competitive Performance

Aligned with Shareholder Interests

Fixed / Variable Fixed Variable

Type of Performance Short-Term

Long-Term

Time Horizon	Ongoing	1 Year	3-Year Performance Period	3 Year Vest 10 Year Life	3 Year Vest
Form		Cash		Equity	
Timing of Payment / Grant	Ongoing	In March for prior year	An	nnually in Februa	ary
Most recent performance measures	N/A	Combination of EPS and various individual goals	Net Income ROATCE	Share price	appreciation

Relative TSR

Funding for organization-wide payouts under the Short Term Incentive Plan for 2017 is based on the achievement against a pre-established operating EPS goal of \$0.96. With an operating EPS result of \$1.04, the incentive payout pool was funded at 113%. After the overall incentive plan funding was determined, each

individual executive s payout was finalized to reflect performance against his or her individual goals. The table below outlines key information on our Short-Term Incentive Plan and the range of incentive payouts for the NEOs.

	2017 STIP	Fundin	ng Range					
								Incentive
								Payouts as
Performance								%
Metric for Plan						Determining NEO	Range of NEO	of NEO
	Level of		Funding	Actual			Incentive	
	LC VCI OI		Tununing	Actual			mcentive	
Funding	Achievement	EPS	_		Funding	Incentive Payout	Opportunity	Targets
Funding		EPS \$1.25	Payout(1)		Funding	Incentive Payout 1) Plan funding		Targets
Funding Operating EPS	Achievement		Payout(1) 150%		Funding 113%	•		Targets 113 - 120%

⁽¹⁾ For achievement between threshold and target and target and maximum, funding payout is determined based on linear interpolation.

See *Committee Actions Affecting 2017 Compensation Rating Past Performance* for more information regarding 2017 STIP payouts to our NEOs, including individual goals for each executive.

Compensation Program Changes for 2017.

2014 Long-Term Incentive Plan as Amended and Restated. The Company obtained approval to issue 41,850,000 additional shares under the 2014 Long-Term Incentive Plan. In addition to the share increase, we asked shareholders to approve other amendments to address administrative and governance related matters. The key changes are listed below:

Minimum Vesting	The 2014 Long-Term Incentive Plan was silent on minimum vesting requirements. We implemented a change so that there will be a minimum of at least one-year vesting of all
Requirements	awards with no exceptions other than a Change in Control, death/disability or a 5% carve-out.
Dividend Equivalent	
	The payout of dividends or dividend equivalents is now subject to the same vesting and
Payout/Vesting	performance conditions of the underlying award.
Change in Control	All awards are now subject to double-trigger provisions. If the awards are not assumed or converted upon a Change in Control, the vesting will accelerate. Performance awards will
Equity Treatment	vest pro-rata based on the fractional performance period and at target performance.
Repricing via	
	The changes to the 2014 Long-Term Incentive Plan clarified that repricing through
Substitution	substitution of awards is specifically prohibited.

At the 2017 annual meeting, our shareholders approved the requested amendments to the 2014 Long-Term Incentive Plan with approximately 79% of the votes cast in favor of approval.

27

Compensation Overview.

Our compensation program reflects the following principles:

	What We Do
Pay for Performance	A majority of each senior executive s target compensation is at risk. Actual
	compensation is dependent on company-wide and individual performance.
Balanced Approach	The at-risk portion of our senior executives compensation is appropriately
	balanced to encourage them to consider the impact their decisions have over
0. 10. 11	both short and long-term time horizons.
Stock Ownership Guidelines	We have adopted guidelines for stock ownership by our senior executive
Guidennes	officers. See Stock Ownership Guidelines for Directors and Executive Officers for more detail.
Clawback Provisions	Our short and long-term incentive plans allow us to recoup incentive
Clawback 1 10 visions	compensation paid to an executive if circumstances warrant. We have adopted
	an incentive clawback policy aligned with proposed SEC regulations.
Double Trigger for	Our Change in Control agreements have a double trigger, meaning that an
Change in Control	executive must experience a qualifying termination event after occurrence of a
Benefits	change in control to receive severance benefits. In addition, we introduced
Compensation-Related	double trigger provisions to our stock awards in 2017. On an annual basis, the Company s Chief Risk Officer oversees a risk
Risk	assessment of the Company's cincertive compensation programs.
Peer Group Review	To ensure that the peer group continues to be a valid reference point for making
1	executive compensation decisions, the Compensation, Nominating and
	Governance Committee reviews the composition of the peer group annually and
	makes adjustments as needed. The peer group was updated for compensation
	decisions made in 2016, and reaffirmed for compensation decisions made in
	2017.
Independent Consultant	The Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee retains an
	independent compensation consultant to provide expertise and information about competitive trends in the employment marketplace, including established
	and emerging compensation practices at other companies.
Minimum Vesting	There is a minimum of at least one-year vesting of all awards with no
Requirements	exceptions other than a Change in Control, death/disability or a 5% carve-out.
Dividend Equivalent	The payout of dividends or dividend equivalents is now subject to the same
	vesting and performance conditions of the underlying award.
Payout/Vesting	

	What We Don t Do
Excise Tax Gross-Ups	There are no excise tax gross-ups on change in control benefits.
Employment Agreements	We do not have any employment agreements with any of our senior executives.
Stock Option Practices	We do not grant discounted stock options, and we do not reprice or backdate stock options. In 2017, we clarified the language within the plan document to state that repricing through substitution of awards is specifically prohibited.

Pledging and Hedging

Senior executives are prohibited from engaging in pledging and hedging activities. See Governance Principles and Related Matters Prohibition on Hedging and Pledging for more detail.

28

Participants in the Compensation Setting Process. The Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee of our Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing and making recommendations to the independent members of the Board of Directors with respect to the compensation of the named executive officers, including the Chief Executive Officer. As part of these duties, the members of the CNGC perform the following activities:

Conduct an annual performance review of the Chief Executive Officer

Review the performance of each other named executive officer, in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer

Formulate recommendations for approval by the independent members of the Board of Directors of the compensation of all named executive officers, including the Chief Executive Officer

Review, oversee and approve the management and implementation of our human resources policies and its principal employee benefit plans

Undertake other duties that are related to the human resources function

The CNGC has a formal charter which describes the Committee s scope of authority and its duties. The CNGC s charter is available on our website at www.peoples.com under Investor Relations: Corporate Governance, Board Committee Structure: Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee.

The CNGC consists of three directors, all of whom are independent within the meaning of Rule 5605(a)(2) of The Nasdaq Stock Market and also satisfy the standards prescribed by Rule 5605(d)(2)(A) of The Nasdaq Stock Market. The Board of Directors evaluates the independence of CNGC members annually. This evaluation, and the determination that each member of the Committee is independent and satisfies the standards prescribed by Rule 5605(d)(2)(A) of The Nasdaq Stock Market, was most recently made in February 2018.

The executive officers identified in the table below participate in the annual compensation-setting process. Executive participation is meant to provide the CNGC with input regarding our compensation philosophy, process and decisions. In addition to providing factual information such as company-wide performance on relevant measures, executives articulate management s views on current compensation programs and processes, recommend relevant performance measures to be used for future awards, and otherwise supply information to assist the CNGC. The table below describes the nature of each executive s participation in this process.

Chief Executive Officer Regularly participates in the Committee's compensation-setting process

Provides information about individual performance assessments for the other named executive officers

	Expresses to the Committee his view on the appropriate levels of compensation for the other named executive officers for the ensuing year
	Makes recommendations, but does not have a vote in the Committee s decision-making process
	Does not attend those portions of Committee meetings during which his performance is evaluated (except to present his self-evaluation to the Committee) or his compensation is being determined
Chief Human Resources Officer	Attends the Committee meetings to provide insight into the organization s executive compensation programs and incentive plans
	Provides updates on the organization s benefit and retirement programs, as well as other Human Resources policies
Chief Financial Officer	May participate to a limited extent in connection with the establishment of financially-driven performance goals
Chief Risk Officer	Participates in at least one meeting annually to discuss the assessment of risk in the design and execution of the compensation programs

29

Executives participate in CNGC discussions purely in an informational and advisory capacity, but have no vote in the Committee s decision-making process. No executive participates in the determination of his or her own compensation.

The CNGC retains the services of an independent compensation consultant. During 2017, the CNGC engaged the consulting firm Willis Towers Watson to provide insight into prevalent compensation practices and emerging trends, analyze named executives officers compensation arrangements and summarize changes in the regulatory environment. Specifically, the consultant provided the following services:

Analyzed the peer group for executive compensation comparisons

Conducted benchmarking of the direct compensation of the Chief Executive Officer and other NEOs relative to the peer group

Analyzed compensation positioning and made recommendations for the Chief Executive Officer and other NEOs

Provided market information on short-term incentive and long-term incentive target ranges

Reviewed Board of Directors compensation, and

Advised on executive compensation practices, including long-term incentive plan design Annual Compensation-Setting Process. The principal components of executive compensation packages consist of: base salary; annual cash bonus (also called the Short-Term Incentive Plan (STIP) Bonus); and long-term incentives. We call the combination of these components—direct compensation. For each named executive officer, a significant percentage of direct compensation is at-risk, meaning it will generally be earned or increase in value when the named executive officer or we are successful in ways that are aligned with and support shareholder interests. At-risk elements of compensation may have no value or may be worth less than the target value if applicable performance goals are not fully attained or the price of the common stock declines or remains flat after the date the at-risk compensation is awarded. At-risk compensation includes all components of direct compensation other than base salary.

The CNGC analyzes the level and relative mix of each element of direct compensation for named executive officers on an annual basis. The Chief Executive Officer also makes recommendations to the Committee relating to compensation to be paid to the named executive officers other than himself. Based on this analysis and (where appropriate) the Chief Executive Officer s recommendations, the CNGC makes annual recommendations to the independent members of the Board of Directors about each named executive officer s direct compensation package.

The CNGC seeks to create what it believes is the best mix of the principal components of direct compensation in delivering the named executive officers—direct compensation. These components are evaluated in relation to benchmark data derived from information reported in publicly-available proxy statements or from market survey data. The companies which are the source of the benchmark data may be different for the Chief Executive Officer and for the other named executive officers, due to differences in the availability of reliable data for comparable executive

positions below the Chief Executive Officer level. As discussed below under the heading Committee Actions Affecting 2017 Compensation, the Committee uses the benchmark data as a primary reference point when setting the Chief Executive Officer s target compensation, and as a reference point when setting the target compensation for the other named executive officers. Except in unusual circumstances, the committee sets target compensation at levels that are competitive with the benchmark data.

Assembly of the direct compensation package for each named executive officer begins with the establishment of target ranges for the separate elements making up each named executive officer s direct compensation package. The CNGC establishes these target ranges in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer and the independent compensation consultant. The target range for each element of direct compensation for each named executive officer is around the 50th percentile of the benchmark data. Deviations from the target ranges may be made to account for a particular executive s experience, complexity of responsibility, value to the organization, and expertise in his or her field of responsibility.

30

Once the ranges have been established, the CNGC determines the base salary component for each named executive officer, including the Chief Executive Officer. In doing so, the Committee reviews base salary information compiled by the compensation consultant from the sources described above, then formulates a recommendation for the base salary component of each named executive officer s compensation in relation to that information. The target base salary for the Chief Executive Officer is determined using the percentile target range established for the elements of his direct compensation. The target base salary for each other named executive officer is based on target ranges for each element of direct compensation. The target base salary for each named executive officer may then be adjusted on an individual basis to reflect one or more of the factors noted in the preceding paragraph.

The CNGC follows a similar process for each other element of direct compensation using the target ranges established for the elements of direct compensation.

The target amount of the STIP Bonus award is expressed as a percentage of the executive s base salary for the ensuing year. The assumed value of stock options for purposes of assembling the compensation package is determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, and the assumed value of performance share units and restricted stock grants is the fair value of the common stock, in each case determined as of a date reasonably close to the date the grants are to be made. For 2017, the overall target value of these long-term awards is comprised of 50% performance share awards, 25% stock options and 25% restricted stock awards. The Committee may decide to depart from the target levels established for the STIP Bonus or equity compensation awards, for the same reasons as discussed with respect to base salary.

The annual process of assembling target compensation packages for the named executive officers is forward-looking in nature. Actual performance over the applicable measurement period may exceed or fall short of the targets, and the common stock may be worth more or less in the future compared to valuations used in formulating equity-based awards. This means that when at-risk compensation is actually received by a named executive officer, it may be worth more or less to the executive than was expected at the time the award was initially made. This applies to forms of at-risk compensation paid out in cash or shares, realized from the exercise of stock options, or sale of shares after vesting.

The amount realized by named executive officers from at-risk awards granted in prior years is not taken into account by the Committee in the process of setting target compensation for the current year. The CNGC believes that doing so would be inconsistent with the underlying reasons for the use of at-risk compensation. If current year awards were increased to make up for below-target performance in prior years or decreased to account for above-target performance in prior years, the link between performance and reward would be diluted or eliminated. Named executive officers would have little incentive to improve performance if it meant decreased target awards in the future, or if the negative consequences for poor performance would be cushioned by increases in the target value of future awards. In addition, the value realized by a named executive officer from equity-based awards granted in prior periods is partially dependent upon when the executive decides to realize that value by exercising options or by selling vested shares. The CNGC does not believe it would be appropriate to adjust future grants in light of these types of individual decisions.

The objective of the annual compensation-setting process is to establish the appropriate level and mix of compensation for each named executive officer, in reference to the factors discussed above. The Committee believes that the accounting treatment of any given element of direct compensation, while relevant, is not a fundamental consideration in the compensation-setting process. For the same reasons, the CNGC considers, but does not give undue weight to, the tax treatment of each component of compensation. Generally, under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code), annual compensation paid to a named executive officer is not deductible if it exceeds \$1 million. Historically, this deduction limitation did not apply to performance-based compensation within

the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code, and we designed our compensation in a manner intended to allow us to utilize this performance-based exception. For 2017, we considered the application of Section 162(m) of the Code in awarding compensation to our named executive officers in a manner intended to qualify as performance-based compensation. However, as a result of the

elimination of the performance-based compensation enacted at the end of 2017, subject to certain grandfathering rules, we will no longer be permitted to take deductions for performance-based compensation, and therefore, we anticipate that compensation decisions will not be made with as much, if any, focus on the application of Section 162(m) of the Code.

The CNGC understands that the absence of this deduction will increase the effective cost of such compensation. The Committee believes this represents an additional cost of doing business that should be borne by the organization as a result of non-tax decisions regarding the appropriate level and mix of compensation for each named executive officer.

Named executive officers receive a variety of fringe benefits as compensation. Some of these are available to a broad range of employees, while others are limited to senior and executive officers. Fringe benefits for the named executive officers include: medical, dental and vision coverage (shared cost); pre-tax health and dependent care spending accounts; group life insurance coverage; short- and long-term disability insurance coverage; financial planning and tax preparation services; and an automobile allowance and reimbursement of operating expenses. Certain executives who do not reside permanently in the Bridgeport, Connecticut area are provided with local housing at our expense.

Retirement benefits represent an important source of compensation to the named executive officers. As with fringe benefits, some forms of retirement benefits are available to a broad range of employees, while others are limited to senior and executive officers who meet specified eligibility criteria. Retirement benefits are provided through the People s United Bank, N.A 401(k) Employee Savings Plan (401(k) Plan); the Employee Stock Ownership Plan of People s United Financial, Inc. (ESOP); and the People s United Bank, N.A. Non-Qualified Savings and Retirement Plan. The 401(k) Plan and the ESOP are tax-qualified plans available to all qualifying employees. Mr. Barnes and Mr. Powlus are entitled to benefits under the Chittenden Corporation Pension Account Plan. Benefits under this plan were frozen as of December 31, 2005. Additional information about these plans can be found in the discussion following the table headed Pension Benefits.

The CNGC reviews fringe benefits and retirement benefits, but does not necessarily consider changes to those components on an annual basis. Changes to the level or types of benefits within these categories, including considerations relating to the addition or elimination of benefits and plan design changes, are made by the Committee on an aggregate basis with respect to the group of employees entitled to those benefits, and not with reference to a particular named executive officer—s compensation package. Decisions about these components of compensation are made without reference to the named executive officers—direct compensation packages, as they involve issues of more general application and often include consideration of trends in the industry or in the employment marketplace.

Decisions about direct compensation are made without reference to other elements of compensation. Fringe benefits and retirement benefits are not specifically tailored for the named executive officers, and are provided under programs that provide similar benefits to non-executive employees.

Linking Company Performance to Incentive Plan Funding. Each year, the CNGC establishes one or more prospective company-wide performance targets for use in making funding determinations that affect payment of STIP Bonuses. Actual performance is evaluated against the target performance measures after the close of the performance period to which the measures apply. The results of that comparison are used to calculate the level of funding available to pay STIP Bonuses awarded for the applicable performance period.

The target performance measures for the STIP Bonus are objective measures that reflect our operating results for the year for which the target is established. The CNGC has historically sought to ensure that attainment of the target performance measure is challenging yet achievable. When establishing a performance target in relation to results of operations, the Committee seeks to establish a target based on operating results derived from sources that are

reasonably predictable and stable. Therefore, the Committee often specifies a target operating measure (such as earnings per share, or EPS) that is based on results from continuing operations. After the conclusion of the fiscal year, the Chief Executive Officer may suggest that the Committee consider additional

adjustments to the target operational measures which are designed to eliminate the effects of extraordinary or unusual events. Some events for which these kinds of adjustments are made may occur from time to time, but are nevertheless considered to be extraneous to the conduct of normal day-to-day banking business. The Committee is not required to adopt the Chief Executive Officer s recommendations. For any given year, the CNGC may decide to establish performance measures in addition to or in place of operationally-based measures. For 2017, the Committee established a STIP funding performance target based on EPS. The EPS performance measure established by the Committee differs from EPS as reported under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles because it excludes the effects of certain non-routine items. For 2017, this measure was identical to operating EPS as reported by us from time to time during 2017 and in January 2018.

For purposes of determining the level of funding available to pay STIP Bonuses, actual performance for the relevant year is compared to the target performance measure(s) without reference to any external factors. If actual performance falls below the targeted level but at or above a minimum threshold level set by the Committee, funding for payment of STIP Bonuses on a reduced basis may be available.

Timing of Equity Grants. Stock option grants, restricted stock grants and performance share grants are effective as of the grant date, and options are priced at fair market value on the date of grant. The grant date is the date the equity awards are approved for issuance by the independent members of the Board of Directors, acting on recommendations made to them by the CNGC. We define fair market value as the average of the high and low price of the common stock on the grant date or, if the grant date is not a day when the stock market is open, on the most recent day for which trading data is reported by the market. Equity grants are made to named executive officers during the normal annual compensation-setting cycle and may be made at other times under the circumstances described below.

The CNGC may from time to time recommend to the independent members of the Board of Directors that they approve the payment of special cash compensation or the grant of special equity-based awards to one or more named executive officers in addition to payments and grants approved during the normal annual compensation-setting cycle. The Committee might make such a recommendation if it believes it would be appropriate to reward one or more named executive officers in recognition of contributions to a particular project, or in response to competitive and other factors that were not addressed during the normal annual compensation-setting cycle. On occasion, special payments are contingent on some period of future service by the named executive officer. All equity grants are subject to future vesting contingencies, which may be different than the vesting periods that apply to grants made during the normal annual compensation-setting cycle.

The Committee will generally make off-cycle compensation decisions and recommendations whenever a current employee is promoted to executive officer status, or a new executive officer is hired. The Committee may depart from the compensation guidelines it would normally follow for executives in the case of outside hires.

Rating Past Performance; Payout Decisions. The Committee is responsible for reviewing our actual performance against performance targets established in prior periods. The evaluation of performance in relation to those targets is essential to determining the extent to which cash bonuses are paid to named executive officers. For more information about these performance targets and how they are used, see Linking Company Performance to Incentive Plan Funding above.

The amount actually paid out to each named executive officer (including the Chief Executive Officer) pursuant to a STIP Bonus award depends on two factors: the extent to which the overall STIP Bonus pool is funded for the year; and the named executive officer s overall performance rating with respect to his or her individual performance measures and leadership competencies. The Chief Executive Officer evaluates the performance and leadership behaviors of all named executive officers other than himself, and makes recommendations to the CNGC based on

those evaluations. The CNGC evaluates the performance and leadership behaviors of the Chief Executive Officer.

As discussed earlier, the Committee often specifies one or more target performance measures intended to fairly represent the results of continuing operations during the ensuing year. Events may occur during the course

33

of the year which cause management to conclude that one or more of these measures as initially established does not in fact achieve its intended goal. In that case, the Chief Executive Officer may ask the CNGC to exercise discretion in deciding whether or to what degree the applicable performance measure has been attained or exceeded. The CNGC may, but is not required to, exercise that discretion.

The extent to which the overall STIP Bonus pool for all eligible employees (including named executive officers) is funded is determined by our performance measured against the target performance metrics specified by the Committee. The bonus pool is not funded unless at least a designated minimum percentage (as determined by the CNGC) of the target performance measures are attained for the year. Maximum funding of the bonus pool will occur if actual performance equals or exceeds a designated percentage (as determined by the CNGC) of the target performance measures.

Once the funding level has been determined, the Committee then decides whether to apply an overall funding adjustment factor. Application of this factor may result in an adjustment to the overall funding pool. The CNGC will consider applying an overall funding adjustment factor when the actual financial performance for the preceding year was extraordinarily different from expected performance, and when the Committee believes that actual performance was not primarily attributable to any particular operating unit or units within the organization.

Each named executive officer is also evaluated on several performance objectives that are set at the beginning of the year, and may be revised during the course of the year to account for unanticipated events. These performance measures relate to the strategic business objectives of the organization for the year. Each named executive officer has a unique set of individual performance measures. The degree to which a named executive officer satisfies these individualized measures as well as competencies and overall performance rating is taken into account in determining the amount to be paid out to that executive as a STIP Bonus. No named executive officer can receive a STIP Bonus payout in excess of 200% of the target STIP Bonus amount.

Say on Pay. At the 2017 annual meeting, our shareholders approved the compensation of our named executive officers as presented in the proxy statement for that meeting, with approximately 96% of the votes cast in favor of approval. The Committee will continue to monitor and review our compensation policies in light of evolving corporate governance standards and the results of periodic say on pay votes by shareholders. It will consider revisions to compensation policies when, in the CNGC s judgment, doing so would be consistent with the achievement of long-term success and the enhancement of shareholder value.

Committee Actions Affecting 2017 Compensation.

The CNGC took a variety of actions during 2017 that affected executive compensation for the year. These actions are described in greater detail below under the headings 2017 Direct Compensation; Establishing Performance Targets; and Rating Past Performance. Early in 2018, the Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee evaluated the performance of People's United against the target performance measures established in early 2017 and took other actions relating to calculation of actual payments for the STIP Bonus based on 2017 performance.

Peer Group Update. The Company reaffirmed the composition of the peer group to be used in 2017 for benchmarking the CEO s compensation package. This same peer group, with certain modifications, was also used as a comparison reference in developing the 2017 compensation packages for other executive officers.

To begin reviewing potential banks for a new peer group, the Committee used the following characteristics:

Total assets between \$20 billion and \$150 billion

Similar business model

Commercial orientation

34

The Company evaluated other banks for inclusion into the peer group. From that list, banks were removed from consideration if they had significant insider ownership, or had a unique business model. Using these criteria and objectives, the CNGC reaffirmed the peer group originally established in November 2015:

	2017 Peer Group
Associated Banc-Corp.	KeyCorp
Citizens Financial Group, Inc.*	M&T Bank Corp.
Comerica Inc.	New York Community Bancorp, Inc.*
Cullen/Frost Bankers, Inc.	Signature Bank*
East West Bancorp	Synovus Financial Corp.
First Horizon National Corp	Umpqua Holdings Corporation
FirstMerit Corporation*	Webster Financial Corp.
Huntington Bancshares Inc.	Zions Bancorporation*

The revisions were made to account for significant changes in the competitive landscape among financial institutions, including completed and recently announced acquisitions. Since the establishment of the peer group, Huntington Bancshares finalized its acquisition of FirstMerit in August 2016. For the development of compensation recommendations for 2017, FirstMerit was included as part of the peer group. FirstMerit filed a proxy statement in 2016, and therefore their executive compensation information was available.

2017 Direct Compensation. In February 2017, the Committee recommended, and the independent members of the Board of Directors approved, the various components of the annual compensation packages for the Chief Executive Officer and other named executive officers. Additional information regarding base salary, stock options, and restricted stock grants are included in the detailed compensation tables elsewhere in this proxy statement. Information about the STIP Bonus target amounts is included in this discussion.

For 2017, the Committee used the peer group companies for use in benchmarking the Chief Executive Officer's compensation package.

The above peer group (the CEO peer group) was modified for use as a comparison reference in developing the compensation packages for the other named executive officers, by excluding the five companies marked with an

^{*} Not included as a reference point in developing compensation packages for the NEOs other than the CEO and CFO because the peer did not participate in relevant compensation surveys sponsored by the CNGC s independent compensation consultant.

asterisk in the above list. This was done because of the limited amount of data available for comparable non-CEO executive positions in the unmodified peer group. All of the companies in the modified peer group (the NEO peer group) participate in relevant compensation surveys sponsored by the Committee s independent compensation consultant.

For 2017, the Committee established the target value of Mr. Barnes direct compensation package at approximately \$4.541 million, placing him in the 53rd percentile for direct compensation paid to chief executive officers of the companies included in the CEO peer group, before taking into account any 2017 increase in compensation payable to such officers. This target was established based on our recent financial performance, Mr. Barnes estimated value in the marketplace, and the Committee s view of the Chief Executive Officer s critical role in our future success.

The Committee began the compensation-setting process for the other four named executive officers by referring to internally developed broad guidelines which specify target dollar ranges for executive compensation. These guidelines are based in large part on competitive trends in the employment marketplace, including established and emerging compensation practices at other companies. The CNGC initially established the overall level of direct compensation for each of these named executive officers within the guideline ranges after considering our recent performance and the contribution of each named executive officer to those results, the

35

value of each executive s job in the marketplace, and the criticality of each named executive officer to our future success in attaining our business goals. The CNGC next evaluated these preliminary compensation decisions in comparison to the compensation of executives having comparable responsibilities at companies in the NEO peer group.

The Committee compared its preliminary compensation decisions for the four named executive officers with the NEO peer group data to ensure that those preliminary decisions did not deviate significantly from market practice.

The target value of the four named executive officers—direct compensation packages, as established by the Committee for 2017 following the steps outlined above and based on equity valuation assumptions as of a date reasonably close to the Committee—s action, each fell within the second or third quartile for direct compensation paid to executive officers performing similar duties with the companies included in the peer group.

The target value of each named executive officer s 2017 direct compensation, and the percentage change from the target value of each officer s 2016 direct compensation is as follows:

	Total Direct	%
	Compensation	change
Mr. Barnes	\$ 4,540,826	8.8%
Mr. Powlus	\$ 1,368,937	3.0%
Mr. Rosato	\$ 1,357,722	2.0%
Mr. Tengel	\$ 1,448,955	2.0%
Mr. Walters	\$ 1,357,722	2.0%

After establishing the target value for the overall direct compensation packages for Mr. Barnes and the other four named executive officers, the Committee made detailed determinations for each element of those packages in order to arrive at the desired overall result for each officer. Detailed information regarding the components of each named executive officer s 2017 direct compensation package and the percentage change from the target value of each component of 2016 direct compensation packages is as follows:

	Base	%	STIP Bonus	%		%
					Long-Term	
	Salary	change	Target	change	Incentive Target	change
Mr. Barnes	\$1,056,006	2.0%	\$ 1,056,006	2.0%	\$ 2,428,814	15.6%
Mr. Powlus	\$ 472,047	3.0%	\$ 377,638	3.0%	\$ 519,252	3.0%
Mr. Rosato	\$ 468,180	2.0%	\$ 374,544	2.0%	\$ 514,998	2.0%
Mr. Tengel	\$ 482,985	2.0%	\$ 386,388	2.0%	\$ 579,582	2.0%
Mr. Walters	\$ 468,180	2.0%	\$ 421,362	2.0%	\$ 468,180	2.0%

STIP Bonus targets were established for each named executive officer as a percentage of his base salary. The actual amount to be paid out to each named executive officer will be determined in part based on our financial performance for the year and in part based on the other factors discussed under the heading *Rating Past Performance; Payout Decisions*. The amount paid out will not exceed 200% of the target amount. See *Rating Past Performance* below for a discussion of the amounts paid out to the named executive officers pursuant to these awards.

The CNGC established Mr. Barnes STIP Bonus target at the amount shown in part based on market practice and trends, and in part to achieve the desired mix between base compensation and at-risk compensation. The Committee established the STIP Bonus target amounts for each other named executive officer at the levels shown in part based on market practice and trends, and in part to achieve the desired mix between base compensation and at-risk compensation.

To arrive at the desired total target value of each named executive officer s direct compensation package for 2017, and in light of the levels of base salary and STIP Bonus award already determined, the CNGC established the target value of the long-term incentive portion for each named executive officer in the amounts shown in the table.

36

The target value of the long-term incentive portion of each named executive officer s compensation package is made up of the target value of the value of stock options using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, and the assumed value of performance share units and restricted stock grants. The overall target value of these long-term awards is 50% performance share units, 25% stock options and 25% restricted stock awards. Option values and assumed performance share unit and restricted stock grant values were based on the stock price as of a date reasonably close to the actual grant date.

The target value of the long-term incentive portion of each named executive officer s compensation package is entirely attributable to equity-based forms of compensation. The CNGC considered this to be an appropriate means of aligning our officers compensation with the long-term interests of shareholders.

The Committee follows a philosophy of emphasizing the at-risk components of direct compensation for executive officers. The following table illustrates the mix of each named executive officer s target compensation for 2017, with each component expressed as a percentage of the officer s total direct compensation:

		STIP	Long-Term
	Base Salary	Bonus Target	Incentive Target
Mr. Barnes	23.3%	23.3%	53.5%
Mr. Powlus	34.5%	27.6%	37.9%
Mr. Rosato	34.5%	27.6%	37.9%
Mr. Tengel	33.3%	26.7%	40.0%
Mr. Walters	34.5%	31.0%	34.5%

Based on the target values of the 2017 long-term incentive awards established for each named executive officer, the Committee recommended the award of options to purchase shares of common stock and the award of shares of common stock, subject to vesting restrictions, to the named executive officers as follows:

	Performance	Restricted	Optioned
	Shares	Shares	Shares
Mr. Barnes	64,674	32,337	312,991
Mr. Powlus	13,826	6,913	66,914
Mr. Rosato	13,713	6,857	66,366
Mr. Tengel	15,433	7,716	74,688
Mr. Walters	12,467	6,233	60,332

Additional information about these performance shares, restricted shares and options is contained in the Summary Compensation Table and the table headed *Grants of Plan-Based Awards* and accompanying discussion, all of which appear below. Stock options will have no value unless the market value of our common stock is higher than the exercise price of the options. The actual value realized upon the exercise of stock options will depend on the market value of our stock at the time of exercise, and the actual value realized by each named executive officer from performance and restricted shares will depend on the market value of our stock at the time he chooses to sell such shares.

All Committee actions taken with respect to the Chief Executive Officer and the four other named executive officers were presented as recommendations for approval by the independent members of the Board of Directors. The Chief Executive Officer participated in the development of the recommendations for the named executive officers other than

himself. He did not vote on the adoption of these recommendations by the CNGC. All of the CNGC s recommendations regarding the compensation of the Chief Executive Officer and the other named executive officers were approved by the independent members of the Board of Directors in February 2017.

Establishing Performance Targets. In February 2017, the Committee established the performance targets for purposes of determining actual payouts for the 2017 STIP Bonus. The CNGC specified a performance target equal to budgeted EPS from continuing operations for the year, or \$0.96. The EPS measure established by the Committee differs from EPS as reported under U.S generally accepted accounting principles because it excludes the effects of certain non-routine items.

37

Management advised the CNGC that it considered this target to be challenging in light of uncertainty around economic recovery, and potential fiscal, regulatory and tax law policy changes. The CNGC thus viewed the performance targets to be challenging yet achievable goals based on this information.

Rating Past Performance. In January 2018, the CNGC evaluated our actual performance during 2017 against the STIP performance target established in February 2017. For 2017, EPS from continuing operations was \$1.04 representing approximately 108% of the performance target established by the Committee at the beginning of 2017. Based on these results, management recommended, and the Committee approved, funding for the overall STIP Bonus pool at 113% of target, consistent with the funding metrics approved at the beginning of 2017 without any funding adjustments.

In determining the 2017 STIP Bonus payouts for the other named executive officers, the CNGC considered the Chief Executive Officer s evaluation of each named executive officer s performance against the individual set of previously-established key performance measures and leadership competencies for each officer. The types of personal objectives established for each named executive officer depend on their respective areas of responsibility. Objectives for executive officers in charge of a business line are focused on attainment of specified revenue, profitability and cost-containment goals. Objectives for executive officers in charge of staff functions include cost containment measures and also focus on process improvement and business integration goals. The level of accomplishment is weighed across all goals to arrive at an overall rating of performance for incentive compensation purposes. Incentive compensation payout ratios for a named executive officer may range from zero to 200% of the target payout for that officer, depending on the level of funding available for the overall incentive compensation pool (determined solely by reference to the Company s performance with respect to the established EPS performance measure) and the overall performance rating for the individual officer.

38

Each of the named executive officers is a member of the management committee and has a broad range of responsibilities, which include providing leadership and collaboration across business lines in order to positively impact the overall results of the Company. In addition to the individual objectives identified below, each is charged with ensuring compliance with all regulatory requirements, including BSA/AML. For 2017, the performance goals for our named executive officers were as follows:

Name	Summary of 2017 Objectives and Results
John P. Barnes	Mr. Barnes leads the strategic direction of People s United. For 2017, he was responsible for overseeing the Company s efforts to drive revenue, grow loans and deposits, increase fee revenue, control expenses and improve asset quality.
	<u>2017 Results</u> . Under Mr. Barnes direction, the Company grew loans and deposits, strengthened fee businesses, implemented various technology enhancements and furthered progress on customer development and penetration initiatives. Company results for the year included:
	Operating EPS of \$1.04 per common share (12% increase)
	11% increase in total revenues
	13% increase in net interest income
	10% increase in total loans
	11% increase in total deposits
	280 basis point improvement in efficiency ratio

Table of Contents 83

Best in class asset quality

Net loan charge-offs of 0.07%, an increase of 1 basis point

Completed the acquisition of Suffolk Bancorp, a Long Island, New York-based bank

Acquired LEAF Commercial Capital, Inc., a Philadelphia, Pennsylvania-based equipment leasing and finance company

Lee C. Powlus

Mr. Powlus directs the Administrative Services division with oversight of Information Technology, Project Management, Information Security, Operations and eBusiness, Business Services and Real Estate Services. He was responsible for managing a significant portion of the Company s total operating expense budget. For 2017, Mr. Powlus goals were to maintain stable technology platforms with sufficient scale to meet our growth objectives, control expenses, and execute on a variety of initiatives, projects and product launches.

<u>2017 Results</u>. Mr. Powlus strong leadership resulted in improvements in operational efficiencies, continued expense control efforts and various technological upgrades.

Operating EPS of \$1.04 per common share (12% increase)

Continued to develop infrastructure, analyze current processes, and implement procedural or policy changes to improve operations

Re-negotiated major vendor agreements

Oversaw various system enhancements and upgrades, including strengthening cyber security

Identified, evaluated and executed on opportunities for site consolidations

Successful conversion of Suffolk s core system to People s United s core system

39

<u>Table</u>

e of Contents	
Name	Summary of 2017 Objectives and Results
R. David Rosato	Mr. Rosato directs the organization s overall financial policies, and oversees all financial functions including accounting, investor relations, treasury, tax, budget and corporate finance. For 2017, Mr. Rosato s goals included achieving the Company s EPS target, growing revenue, controlling expenses, increasing deposits and completing various projects.
	2017 Results. Mr. Rosato s leadership was critical to the Company s strong financial results. He remained focused on revenue and deposit growth, as well as expense control, by partnering with the business lines.
	Operating EPS of \$1.04 per common share (12% increase)
	Successfully completed the acquisition of Suffolk Bancorp, a Long Island, New York- based bank and LEAF Commercial Capital
	11% increase in total revenues
	11% increase in total deposits
	280 basis point improvement in efficiency ratio
	Enhanced analyst and investor relationships
	Continued build-out of the stress testing and modeling groups

Jeffrey J. Tengel Mr. Tengel leads the Commercial Banking division, including Commercial and Industrial lending, Commercial Real Estate Finance and all leasing activities, as well as People s United Insurance Agency, Inc. His goals included revenue, fee, loan and

Edgar Filing: People's United Financial, Inc. - Form DEF 14A deposit growth, expense control and continued asset quality improvement. 2017 Results. Mr. Tengel led Commercial Banking to strong performance in 2017, as exhibited by the following: Operating EPS of \$1.04 per common share (12% increase) 15% increase in commercial banking revenues 1% increase in insurance revenue 11% increase in commercial loans 16% increase in commercial deposits 17% increase in commercial deposit related fees 2% decrease in originated non-performing commercial assets, excluding acquired non-performing loans Outstanding asset quality for commercial loans

Net loan charge-offs of 0.07%, an increase of 1 basis point

Successfully integrated LEAF Commercial Capital and Suffolk Bancorp

40

Name Summary of 2017 Objectives and Results

Kirk W. Walters

Mr. Walters leads the strategic planning effort for the entire organization, and partners with each business line to drive growth and business improvements. He is responsible for identifying and evaluating acquisition and divestiture targets.

2017 Results.

Operating EPS of \$1.04 per common share (12% increase)

Completed the acquisition of Suffolk Bancorp, a Long Island, New York-based bank

Successfully led the acquisition of LEAF Commercial Capital, Inc., a Philadelphia, Pennsylvania-based equipment leasing and finance company

Successfully completed the sale of our retirement services business

Identified and investigated potential companies for acquisition as well as evaluated other business opportunities to strengthen our operating performance

Completed development of three-year company Strategic Plan and developed certain business unit level strategic plans

The Committee evaluated the performance of each of the named executive officers relative to their respective performance measures. Based on those evaluations, the CNGC determined that each of the named executive officers met or exceeded expectations with respect to their individual goals. The CNGC also considered the leadership behaviors exhibited by each of the named executive officers during the year. As a result of the CNGC s evaluation and its recommendations to the full Board, the Board authorized STIP Bonus payouts to the named executive officers ranging from 113% to 120% of target within the overall opportunity range of zero to 200%.

Based on each individual s level of achievement and the level of funding available in the STIP Bonus pool, the Committee recommended, and the independent members of the Board of Directors approved, payouts of STIP Bonuses for each named executive officer, as follows:

	Payout Amount	Payout as Percentage of STIP Bonus Target
Mr. Barnes	\$ 1,267,027	120%
Mr. Powlus	\$ 434,283	115%
Mr. Rosato	\$ 423,235	113%
Mr. Tengel	\$ 444,346	115%
Mr. Walters	\$ 505,634	120%

Additional information about STIP Bonus awards is contained in the table headed *Grant of Plan-Based Awards* below. STIP Bonus payouts for 2017 are included in the column headed Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation in the Summary Compensation Table below, and in the explanatory text following that table.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis required by Item 402(b) of Securities and Exchange Commission Regulation S-K with management. Based upon such review and discussion, the Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee recommended to the board of directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this proxy statement.

Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee

Nancy McAllister, Chairwoman

George P. Carter

Mark W. Richards

41

REVIEW OF COMPENSATION-RELATED RISK

We have considered the extent to which our compensation policies and practices influence the behaviors of our executives and other employees with respect to taking business risks that could affect us. We believe that our compensation policies and practices are not reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on us, either individually or in the aggregate. Executive management, including our Chief Risk Officer, conducts an annual risk assessment of these policies and practices and will advise the Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee of their findings and recommendations (if any) for changes to these policies and practices.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION TABLES

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth a summary for the last fiscal year of the cash and non-cash compensation paid or awarded to our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, and our three most highly compensated executive officers other than the principal executive officer and principal financial officer who were serving as executive officers at the end of the 2017 fiscal year (the named executive officers).

d Principal Position	Year		Salary (\$)	Bonus (\$)	3	Stock Awards (\$)	Option Awards (\$)	In	Non-Equity ncentive Plan Compensation (\$)	r C	Change in Pension Value and Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Earnings (\$)	C	All Other Compensation (\$)	Te
		1	1,052,422 1,031,787 1,050,865			1,830,395 1,663,875 912,402	\$619,722 550,237 913,500	\$	1,267,207 1,138,830 1,065,750	\$	86,747 47,467 16,556	\$	268,088 226,258 231,087	\$ 5, 4, 4,
tive Vice President	2017 2016 2015		469,667 456,743 465,189		\$	395,846 402,310 250,033	\$ 132,490 131,987 247,121	\$	434,283 403,302 377,422	\$	31,388 17,284 5,949	\$	233,671 213,553 209,474	\$ 1, 1, 1,
	2017 2016 2015		466,591 457,442 456,731		\$	392,668 402,911 250,404	\$ 131,405 132,189 247,501	\$	423,235 385,560 367,200	\$	14,408 7,334 2,323	\$	76,712 75,030 72,432	\$ 1, 1, 1,
Tengel tive Vice President cial Banking)	2017 2016 2015		481,346 471,907 480,634		\$	441,174 452,911 281,262	\$ 147,882 148,766 278,539	\$	444,346 416,693 389,953	\$	7,460 3,800 1,199	\$	75,228 74,449 76,722	\$ 1, 1, 1,
Walters tive Vice President	2017 2016 2015		466,591 457,442 509,038		\$	357,496 366,667 228,040	\$ 119,457 120,171 225,001	\$	505,634 433,755 413,100	\$	9,649 5,093 1,734	\$	138,037 115,053 118,999	\$ 1, 1, 1,

te Development and Planning)

Amounts shown in the Stock Awards column reflect the aggregate grant date fair value of the awards for 2017, 2016 and 2015, computed in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board's Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC) Topic 718 without taking into account estimated forfeitures. Stock awards are generally valued at the average of the high and low stock price on the grant date. The value attributed to stock allocated pursuant to the Employee Stock Ownership Plan, which we call the ESOP, is based on the closing price of our common stock on the date the allocation was made. The assumptions made when calculating the amounts are found in Note 18 (Stock-Based Compensation Plans) to our Consolidated Financial Statements in Part II, Item 8 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017. The terms of the 2017 stock awards are summarized under Compensation Discussion and Analysis Compensation Program Changes for 2017 above. With respect to the performance shares granted in 2017, the number of shares to be issued upon vesting will range from 50% to 150% of the target award amount (or zero for performance below threshold) based on the Company's performance over a three-year performance period compared to target performance on three performance measures: (i) average annual percentage change in the Company's net income (Net Income), (ii) annual return on average tangible common equity (ROATCE), and (iii) the Company's relative total shareholder return compared to our peer group's total shareholder return (TSR), each weighted one-third (331/3%). The grant date value of the performance shares was computed in

accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718 based on the probable outcome of the three performance measures as of the grant date. Assuming the highest level of performance is achieved over the performance period, the grant date fair value of the Net Income and ROATCE weighted awards would be: Mr. Barnes \$1,204,877; Mr. Powlus \$257,578; Mr. Rosato \$255,473; Mr. Tengel \$287,517; Mr. Walters \$232,260. As the shares that vest according to TSR are subject to market conditions as defined under FASB ASC Topic 718, they have no maximum grant date fair values that differ from the fair values as presented in the table. For more information on stock awards made to the named executive officers during 2017, see the table in this section entitled *Grants of Plan-Based Awards*.

Amounts shown in the Option Awards column reflect the aggregate grant date fair value of the awards for 2017, 2016 and 2015, computed in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board's Accounting Standards Codification FASB ASC Topic 718 without taking into account estimated forfeitures. The assumptions made when calculating the amounts are also found in Note 18 (Stock-Based Compensation Plans) to our Consolidated Financial Statements in Part II, Item 8 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017. The terms of the 2017 option awards are summarized under Compensation Discussion and Analysis Compensation Program Changes for 2017 above. All options granted were granted pursuant to the 2014 Long-Term Incentive Plan.

		Black-Scholes Assumptions					
				Expected	Risk-free	Expected	
	Option	Exercise	Dividend	Volatility	Interest	Term	
Option Grant Date	Value	Price	Yield	Rate	Rate	(Years)	
February 16, 2017	\$ 1.98	\$ 19.17	3.55%	17.89%	1.94%	4.42	

The exercise price shown in the above table is equal to the fair value of the underlying stock on the grant date. For more information on option grants made to the named executive officers during 2017, see the table entitled Grants of Plan-Based Awards.

The amounts shown in the Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation column for 2017 reflect short-term incentive bonus payments made to the named executive officers in 2018 with respect to performance in 2017.

Amounts shown in the column headed Change in Pension Value and Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Earnings are for the twelve months ended December 31, 2017 which is the pension plan measurement date we use for financial reporting purposes. Details of these amounts are as follows:

			Nonqualified Deferred			
	Cl	hange in	Com	pensation		
	Pensi	ion Value ^(a)	Ea	rnings ^(b)		
John P. Barnes	\$	3,700	\$	83,047		
Lee C. Powlus	\$	800	\$	30,588		
R. David Rosato	\$		\$	14,408		
Jeffrey J. Tengel	\$		\$	7,460		
Kirk W. Walters	\$		\$	9,649		

(a) Messrs. Rosato, Tengel and Walters do not participate in any of our defined benefit plans.

(b) Represents above-market earnings on compensation deferred by the named executive officer under the Non-Qualified Savings and Retirement Plan and, in the case of Messrs. Barnes and Powlus, previously deferred under the Chittenden Corporation Supplemental Executive Savings Plan. Information about how these earnings are calculated is shown in the table headed *Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation* and accompanying text

Amounts shown as All Other Compensation are attributable to perquisites and other personal benefits, and to other items of compensation that are not reported elsewhere in the Summary Compensation Table. Perquisites and other personal benefits consist of: a company-supplied automobile or automobile allowance; tax preparation and financial planning services; personal use of gasoline credit card; for Mr. Powlus, the cost of

providing local housing in the Bridgeport area (\$25,467); and for Messrs. Barnes, Powlus and Walters, the use of a company-owned airplane (and related ground transportation) to the extent such use was not considered under applicable regulations to be integrally and directly related to the performance of his duties (\$90,250, \$99,813 and \$35,860 respectively).

Direct flights between Bridgeport, Connecticut and Burlington, Vermont (or nearby airports if necessary due to weather conditions or other considerations) were taken into account in determining the value attributed to the use of the company-owned airplane. Certain flights between Burlington, Vermont and other destinations were also considered where the principal purpose associated with the flight was not business related. The per-flight cost of each trip on which Mr. Barnes, Mr. Powlus or Mr. Walters was a passenger was divided by the number of our employees on the same flight for purposes of determining the amount attributable to each of them for such trips. Fixed costs such as the monthly third-party management fee associated with the airplane were excluded in making this calculation.

Additional items shown as All Other Compensation for 2017 include: employer matching contributions and credits to the 401(k) Employee Savings Plan and the Non-Qualified Savings and Retirement Plan (Mr. Barnes, \$87,450; Mr. Powlus, \$34,719; Mr. Rosato, \$18,464; Mr. Tengel, \$19,054; and Mr. Walters, \$36,014); employer retirement contributions and credits to the 401(k) Employee Savings Plan and the Non-Qualified Savings and Retirement Plan (Mr. Barnes, \$65,738; Mr. Powlus, \$26,189; Mr. Rosato, \$25,565; Mr. Tengel, \$26,941; and Mr. Walters, \$27,010); life insurance premiums (\$551 for each named executive officer); the employer-paid portion of medical and/or dental insurance premiums (\$14,709 for Mr. Barnes; \$13,422 for Powlus; \$16,280 for Mr. Rosato; and \$13,654 for Messrs. Tengel and Walters); and for Mr. Powlus, tax gross-up payments of \$13,398 with respect to the local housing expenses paid on his behalf.

The employer retirement credits made to the Non-Qualified Savings and Retirement Plan were made in 2018 with respect to services rendered during 2017 and, accordingly, are reflected in the table entitled Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation appearing elsewhere in this section.

44

eb. 16, 2017⁽⁶⁾

Grant of Plan-Based Awards in 2017. The following table sets forth information concerning grants of plan-based awards made in 2017 to the named executive officers under the Short-Term Incentive Plan, the 2014 Long-Term Incentive Plan as amended and restated in 2017, and the Employee Stock Ownership Plan.

A 11 O 41

A 4.

60,332 \$

19.17

											Other Op	tion	ı	
	_			Future Payo		s Under	Equit	Future Pay y Incentiv	e Plan	Awards;	Number	-		
]	Non-Equity	' II	ncentive Pla	an .	Awards ⁽²⁾		Awards ⁽²⁾		Number of eares of St	of I Securities Cal derlying	;	rcise or Bas©l Price of Option	losing l Price Gra
rant Date ⁽¹⁾	Th	reshold (\$)	1	Γarget (\$)	M	aximum (\$)}	reshold ((# arget (₩)				_	-	
an. 25, 2017 ⁽⁴⁾ eb. 16, 2017 ⁽⁵⁾ eb. 16, 2017 ⁽⁶⁾ eb. 16, 2017 ⁽⁶⁾	\$	528,003	\$	1,056,006	\$	2,112,012	10,779	64,674	97,011	303			\$	8
eb. 16, 2017 ⁽⁶⁾										02,007	312,991	\$	19.17	
an. 25, 2017 ⁽⁴⁾ eb. 16, 2017 ⁽⁵⁾ eb. 16, 2017 ⁽⁶⁾ eb. 16, 2017 ⁽⁶⁾	\$	188,819	\$	377,638	\$	755,275	2,304	13,826	20,739	303 6,913			\$	6
eb. 16, 2017 ⁽⁶⁾											66,914	\$	19.17	
an. 25, 2017 ⁽⁴⁾ eb. 16, 2017 ⁽⁵⁾ eb. 16, 2017 ⁽⁶⁾ eb. 16, 2017 ⁽⁶⁾ eb. 16, 2017 ⁽⁶⁾		187,272	\$	374,554	\$	749,088	2,286	13,713	20,570	6,857	66,366	\$	19.17	5
an. 25, 2017 ⁽⁴⁾ eb. 16, 2017 ⁽⁵⁾ eb. 16, 2017 ⁽⁶⁾ eb. 16, 2017 ⁽⁶⁾ eb. 16, 2017 ⁽⁶⁾		193,194	\$	386,388	\$	772,776	2,572	15,443	23,150	303 7,716	74,688	\$	19.17	S
an. 25, 2017 ⁽⁴⁾ eb. 16, 2017 ⁽⁵⁾ eb. 16, 2017 ⁽⁶⁾ eb. 16, 2017 ⁽⁶⁾		210,681	\$	421,362	\$	842,724	2,078	12,467	18,701	303 6,233	·		\$	5

- (1) For equity grants other than those made pursuant to the ESOP, this is the date grants were approved by the independent members of the board of directors. Share allocations made pursuant to the ESOP are made as soon as administratively practicable following the date shares are released by the ESOP trustee from the ESOP s loan repayment account in accordance with the terms of the plan.
- (2) The threshold payment for a STIP Bonus (Non-Equity Incentive Plan Awards) is shown as 50% of the target amount. Zero payouts are also possible. The maximum payout with respect to a STIP Bonus award is 200% of the target amount. The threshold for an award of performance shares (Equity Incentive Plan Awards) assumes that threshold performance is achieved with respect to one of the three performance metrics and performance

is below threshold with respect to the other two performance metrics. Zero payouts are also possible. The maximum payout with respect to a performance share award is 150% of the target amount. As discussed in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section of this proxy statement, these awards are the number of performance shares that a named executive officer may earn for the three year performance period starting January 1, 2017 and ending on December 31, 2019 based on the performance measures described in that section.

- (3) Exercise price is equal to fair market value which we define as the average of the high and low stock price on the grant date. This will usually differ from the closing price on the grant date. The fair value of shares allocated to each executive pursuant to the ESOP is based on the closing price on the date the allocation is made.
- (4) Allocated pursuant to ESOP.
- (5) STIP Bonus award for 2017, payable in 2018.
- (6) All awards made pursuant to 2014 Long-Term Incentive Plan.

45

All stock and option awards, and performance share awards shown in this table were made pursuant to the 2014 Long-Term Incentive Plan (as amended and restated in 2017) and the ESOP, as noted. We define fair market value as the average of the high and low trading price of the common stock on The Nasdaq Stock Market on the date of grant or, if no trades take place on that date, the most recent day for which trading data is available.

Cash dividends paid with respect to grants of shares of restricted stock made prior to 2017 are paid to the grantee at the same time as dividends are paid on all other shares of our common stock, regardless of whether awards have vested. Cash dividends with respect to grants of shares of restricted stock made in 2017 accrue after the date of grant and during the vesting period will be credited to the grantee at the same time as dividends are paid on all other shares of our common stock, and will vest and be paid to the grantee at the end of the vesting period. Cash dividends paid with respect to shares of stock allocated to the participant s account in the ESOP, whether or not vested, may be paid to the participant at the same time as dividends are paid on all other shares of our common stock or may be reinvested in additional shares of common stock, at the participant s election. Cash dividends with respect to performance shares that accrue after the date of grant and during the performance period will be credited to the grantee at the same time as dividends are paid on all other shares of our common stock, and will vest and be paid to the grantee at the end of the performance period based on the number of performance shares earned.

Stock and option awards, and performance share awards made to the named executive officers in 2017 will vest as described below:

Source of Grant (Plan Name)

2014 Long-Term Incentive Plan

Grant Date(s) Vesting Schedule

Feb. 16, 2017 Stock and option awards: 33^{1/3}% on Mar. 1

following each of the first three anniversaries of the grant date, subject to continued employment

on the applicable vesting date

Feb. 16, 2017 Performance share awards: 100% on Mar. 1

following the third anniversary of the grant date subject to continued employment on the applicable vesting date and achievement of the

relevant performance metrics

For a description of the vesting of stock, option and performance share awards in the event of certain terminations or upon a change in control, see Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control Long-Term Incentive Plan below. A participant in the ESOP becomes fully vested once he or she has completed five years of credited service, as defined in the plan. All of the named executive officers are fully vested in shares allocated to their accounts under this plan.

For purposes of this table, the grant date fair value of stock awards is generally equal to the number of shares awarded multiplied by the fair value of the shares as determined pursuant to the applicable plan. For stock allocated pursuant to the ESOP, the fair value is assumed to be equal to the closing price of the common stock on the date the shares were allocated to participants—accounts. The grant date fair value of options is determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the assumptions set forth in the text following the Summary Compensation Table for the specified grant date. The grant date value of the performance shares was computed in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718 using the assumptions discussed in Note 18 of our 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal 2017 Year-End

	Option Awards				Stock Awards					
	1				Equity Equity Incentive					
					Incentive Pla					
							Awards:	Awards:		
							Number	Market or		
							of	Payout		
	Number	Number			NumberM	arket Value	e dfnearned	Value of		
	of	of				nares or Un		Unearned		
	Securities	Securities			Shares or	of Stock	Units	Shares,		
		Underlying			Units of	That	or Other	Units or		
	Unexercised				Stock	Have	Rights	Other		
	Options	Options	Option	Option	That Have	Not	That	Rights		
	(#)	(#)	Exercise	Expiration	Not	Vested	Have Not	That		
Name	` '	Jnexercisabl		Date	Vested (#)	(\$)		ve Not Vested ((2)	
John P. Barnes	22,000	ileaci cisabi	\$ 16.94	Feb. 21, 2018	20,382 ^(a)	\$ 381,143	86,048 ^(d)	\$ 1,609,098	Ψ)	
John T. Barnes	32,674		16.58	Jan. 22, 2019	24,586 ^(b)	459,758	75,453 ^(e)	1,410,971		
	32,461		15.80	Jan. 28, 2020	32,337 ^(c)	604,702	75,455	1,410,771		
	85,028		13.05	Sep. 16, 2020	32,337	004,702				
	108,591		13.42	Feb. 17, 2021						
	106,006		12.94	Feb. 21, 2023						
	474,684		13.90	Feb. 20, 2024						
	417,123	208,562 ^(a)	14.85	Feb. 19, 2025						
	137,904	275,808 ^(b)	14.57	Feb. 18, 2026						
	137,704	312,991 ^(c)	19.17	Feb. 16, 2027						
Lee C. Powlus	5,715	312,771	\$ 16.94	Feb. 21, 2018	5,514 ^(a)	\$103,112	20,641 ^(d)	\$ 385,987		
200 011 0 11100	48,200		17.45	Oct. 9, 2018	5,898 ^(b)	110,293	16,130 ^(e)	301,631		
	8,966		16.58	Jan. 22, 2019	6,913 ^(c)	129,273	,			
	8,821		15.80	Jan. 28, 2020	- ,-	.,				
	9,792		13.05	Sep. 16, 2020						
	29,537		13.42	Feb. 17, 2021						
	7,253		13.55	Jul. 21, 2021						
	26,442		12.65	Feb. 16, 2022						
	101,344		12.94	Feb. 21, 2023						
	154,095		13.90	Feb. 20, 2024						
	112,840	56,421 ^(a)	14.85	Feb. 19, 2025						
	33,079	66,159 ^(b)	14.57	Feb. 18, 2026						
		66,194 ^(c)	19.17	Feb. 16, 2027						
R. David Rosato	8,565		\$ 16.58	Jan. 22, 2019	5,522 ^(a)	\$ 103,261	20,673 ^(d)	\$ 386,585		
	39,250		15.62	Jul. 16, 2019	5,906 ^(b)	110,442	15,999 ^(e)	299,181		
	8,427		15.80	Jan. 28, 2020	6,857 ^(c)	128,226				
	12,432		13.42	Feb. 17, 2021						
	15,209		12.65	Feb. 16, 2022						
	29,218		12.94	Feb. 21, 2023						
	43,359		13.90	Feb. 20, 2024						

Edgar Filing: People's United Financial, Inc. - Form DEF 14A

	80,157		14.12	May 15, 2024				
	113,014	56,507 ^(a)	14.85	Feb. 19, 2025				
	33,130	66,260 ^(b)	14.57	Feb. 18, 2026				
		66,366 ^(c)	19.17	Feb. 16, 2027				
Jeffrey J. Tengel	32,012		\$ 15.56	Mar. 8, 2020	6,215 ^(a)	\$ 116,221	23,265 ^(d)	\$ 435,056
	58,677		13.42	Feb. 17, 2021	6,647 ^(b)	124,299	18,005 ^(e)	336,694
	61,075		12.65	Feb. 16, 2022	$7,716^{(c)}$	144,289		
	127,186	63,594 ^(a)	14.85	Feb. 19, 2025				
	37,284	74,570 ^(b)	14.57	Feb. 18, 2026				
		74,688 ^(c)	19.17	Feb. 16, 2027				
Kirk W. Walters	50,000		\$ 12.30	Mar. 17, 2021	5,020 ^(a)	\$ 93,874	18,793 ^(d)	\$ 351,429
	86,433		12.65	Feb. 16, 2022	5,370 ^(b)	100,419	14,545 ^(e)	271,992
	165,637		12.94	Feb. 21, 2023	6,233 ^(c)	116,557		
	245,799		13.90	Feb. 20, 2024				
	102,740	51,370 ^(a)	14.85	Feb. 19, 2025				
	30,118	60,236 ^(b)	14.57	Feb. 18, 2026				
		60,332 ^(c)	19.17	Feb. 16, 2027				

Vesting schedules for the footnoted items in the table above are as follows:

- (a) 100% on Mar. 1, 2018
- (b) 50% on Mar. 1, 2018; 50% on Mar. 1, 2019
- (c) One-third on Mar. 1, 2018; one-third on Mar. 1, 2019; one-third on Mar. 1, 2020
- (d) 100% on Mar. 1, 2019 subject to the performance measures during the three-year performance period starting January 1, 2016 and ending December 31, 2018
- (e) 100% on Mar. 1, 2020 subject to the performance measures during the three-year performance period starting January 1, 2017 and ending December 31, 2019

The market value of unvested stock and performance share awards was calculated for purposes of this table using a per-share value of \$18.70, which was the closing price of our common stock on December 29, 2017. Performance shares granted on February 18, 2016 will vest, if at all, based on the Company's achievement with respect to each equally-weighted performance measure (Net Income, ROATCE and TSR) over the three year performance period starting January 1, 2016 and ending on December 31, 2018. In the table, the number and market value of shares with respect to Net Income and ROATCE reflect maximum performance because actual performance on those performance measures through December 31, 2017 was above maximum. The number and market value of shares with respect to TSR reflect threshold performance because actual performance on that performance measure through December 31, 2017 was below threshold. The actual number of shares that will vest and be distributed with respect to the 2016 performance shares is not yet determinable.

Performance shares granted on February 16, 2017 will vest, if at all, based on the Company s achievement with respect to each equally-weighted performance measure (Net Income, ROATCE and TSR) over the three year performance period starting January 1, 2017 and ending on December 31, 2019. In the table, the number and market value of shares with respect to Net Income and ROATCE reflect maximum performance because actual performance on those performance measures through December 31, 2017 was above maximum. The number and market value of shares with respect to TSR reflect threshold performance because actual performance on that performance measure through December 31, 2017 was below threshold. The actual number of shares that will vest and be distributed with respect to the 2017 performance shares is not yet determinable.

The following table presents information about the exercise of stock options and the vesting of stock awards during 2017 for the named executive officers.

Option Exercises and Stock Vested in 2017

	Opti	Option Awards			Stock Awards Number of Shares				
	Number of Shares Acquired on	Value Realized	Acquired on Vesting		Value Realized				
Name	Exercise (#)	on Exercise (\$)	(#)		esting (\$)				
John P. Barnes	299,309	\$ 959,162	303 50,462	\$	5,780 990,317				
Lee C. Powlus		\$	303	\$	5,780				

Edgar Filing: People's United Financial, Inc. - Form DEF 14A

			14,237	279,401
R. David Rosato	6,040	\$ 13,507	303 10,100 2,724	\$ 5,780 198,213 45,595
Jeffrey J. Tengel	173,685	\$ 940,209	303 16,047	\$ 5,780 314,922
Kirk W. Walters		\$	303 16,915	\$ 5,780 331,957

Cash dividends paid with respect to shares of restricted stock awards made prior to 2017 under our equity incentive plans are paid to the grantee at the same time as dividends are paid on all other shares of our common

stock, regardless of whether awards have vested. During 2017, the named executive officers received dividend payments on unvested shares of stock awards made prior to 2017 under our equity incentive plans in the following amounts: Mr. Barnes, \$39,494; Mr. Powlus, \$10,266; Mr. Rosato, \$10,507; Mr. Tengel, \$11,571; and Mr. Walters, \$10,019. Cash dividends with respect to grants of shares of restricted stock made in 2017 accrue after the date of grant and during the vesting period will be credited to the grantee at the same time as dividends are paid on all other shares of our common stock, and will vest and be paid to the grantee at the end of the vesting period.

Shares allocated pursuant to the ESOP during 2017 to the account of each named executive officer are shown in the following table and in the table entitled Grant of Plan-Based Awards. The table reflects the normal allocation of shares to ESOP participants accounts for the year ended December 31, 2016.

	ESOP Shares Allocated on January 25, 2017
Mr. Barnes	303
Mr. Powlus	303
Mr. Rosato	303
Mr. Tengel	303
Mr. Walters	303

Employees must complete at least one full year of credited service for participation in the ESOP. Share allocations on January 25, 2017 were based on eligible compensation earned during 2016. The values shown in the Option Exercises and Stock Vested table for the shares allocated to the named executive officers ESOP accounts are also included in the Stock Awards column of the Summary Compensation Table.

Pension Benefits in 2017

Name Plan Name		Number of Years of Credited Service (#)	Present Value of Accumulated Benefit (\$)(1)		Payments During Last Fiscal Year (\$)	
John P. Barnes	Chittenden Corporation Pension Account Plan	22.2	\$	321,600	\$	
Lee C. Powlus	Chittenden Corporation Pension Account Plan	13.0	\$	72,300	\$	

(1) Values are as of December 31, 2017, which is the pension plan measurement date we use for financial reporting purposes. The valuation method and material assumptions applied in quantifying the present value of the current accrued benefits are as discussed in Note 17 (Employee Benefit Plans) of our 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Mr. Barnes and Mr. Powlus are participants in the Chittenden Corporation Pension Account Plan, a tax-qualified defined benefit plan for which we assumed responsibility in 2008. None of our named executive officers are eligible to participate in any other People s United defined benefit plans. The Chittenden Corporation Pension Account Plan was closed to new participants as of December 31, 2005 and all of our other defined benefit plans were closed to new

participants effective August 14, 2006.

Benefits under the Chittenden Corporation Pension Account Plan were frozen as of December 31, 2005. The maximum number of years of credited service used in calculating benefits under that plan is equal to the number of years of service credited to each plan participant as of that date. This plan is a cash balance plan. Consequently, values shown in the table for Mr. Barnes and Mr. Powlus represent the actual value of their respective accumulated benefits, without actuarial adjustments.

Benefits under our other defined benefit pension plans were frozen as of December 31, 2011. Consequently, the maximum number of years of credited service used in calculating benefits under these plans is equal to the number of years of service credited to each plan participant as of that date.

49

Retirement Plans

Employees Retirement Plan. The People s United Bank, N.A. Employees Retirement Plan is a tax-qualified noncontributory defined benefit plan. The People s United Bank Cap Excess Plan and the People s United Bank Enhanced Senior Pension Plan (described below) are non-qualified supplemental defined benefit plans which together are referred to as the Supplemental Retirement Plans.

Employees who began employment with the Bank on or after August 14, 2006 are not eligible to participate in the Employees Retirement Plan or in the Supplemental Retirement Plans. None of our named executive officers are participants in these plans.

The Employees Retirement Plan provides retirement benefits for eligible employees. Subject to the limitations imposed under the Internal Revenue Code, benefit payments are based on the employee s years of credited service and the higher of (a) the employee s average annual compensation paid during the five consecutive calendar years during the last ten years of participation that produce the highest average, or (b) 12 times the employee s average monthly compensation paid during the last 60 consecutive months during which the employee received a salary while a participant in the Employees Retirement Plan.

For purposes of the benefit calculation, compensation is the sum of salary and bonus, subject, for purposes of the Employees Retirement Plan benefit calculations, to the limits specified in the Internal Revenue Code. Under the Internal Revenue Code, compensation in excess of specified limits cannot be considered for purposes of determining benefits under the Employees Retirement Plan. The basic pension benefit is a lifetime annual pension payable to employees retiring at age 65 equal to 1.1% of average annual compensation up to average Social Security covered compensation (which is an average of Social Security wage bases), plus 1.7% of average annual compensation in excess of the retiree s average Social Security covered compensation, all multiplied by the employee s years of credited service up to 30 years.

Cap Excess Plan. The Cap Excess Plan covers employees who are participants in the Employees Retirement Plan, who are otherwise eligible under the Cap Excess Plan and whose benefits under the Employees Retirement Plan are affected by limitations on compensation described above and limitations on benefit amounts payable by tax-qualified plans under the Internal Revenue Code. The Cap Excess Plan benefit is equal to the monthly benefit the participant would have received under the Employees Retirement Plan if those limitations did not apply, less the amount he or she would actually receive under that plan.

Enhanced Senior Pension Plan. The Enhanced Senior Pension Plan provides for the payment of supplemental pension benefits for employees who are otherwise eligible under the Enhanced Senior Pension Plan and have attained age 50. The Enhanced Senior Pension Plan provides for an annual target retirement benefit equal to the excess of (1) 50% of the average compensation that would be used in calculating Employees Retirement Plan benefits if the limitations on compensation imposed by the Internal Revenue Code did not apply, over (2) the benefits payable to the covered employee under any other qualified defined benefit plans maintained by the employee s former employers, subject to certain exceptions. The target benefit is then reduced by 1/15th for each year of credited service with the Bank less than 15. Target benefits under the Enhanced Senior Pension Plan are offset by benefits payable under the Employees Retirement Plan and the Cap Excess Plan. A participant in the Enhanced Senior Pension Plan becomes vested upon attaining age 55 or upon completing five years of service (whichever is later), and in any event upon reaching his or her normal retirement date. In addition, all participants in the Enhanced Senior Pension Plan become fully vested upon a change in control of the Bank or on the date the Bank enters into an agreement which would result in a change in control if consummated.

The Supplemental Retirement Plans generally provide for payment of benefits in a lump sum on the later of (A) the first payroll date of the seventh month following the participant s termination of service, or (B) the first payroll date of the month following the participant s attainment of age 55. The lump sum amount is equal to the present value of the applicable plan benefit determined as set forth above, and is calculated using interest assumptions, mortality tables and all other actuarial factors applied under the Employees Retirement Plan for purposes of determining present values of benefits payable under that plan.

Effective December 31, 2011, the benefits earned under the three plans described above were frozen. Continued service with People s United (and our affiliates) and all compensation earned for periods beginning after that date will be disregarded for purposes of calculating the benefits payable under these plans.

Chittenden Corporation Pension Account Plan. The Chittenden Corporation Pension Account Plan is a tax-qualified noncontributory defined benefit plan. Substantially all former full-time employees of Chittenden who were age 21 with one year of service prior to 2006 participate in the Pension Account Plan. Messrs. Barnes and Powlus are the only named executive officers who are participants in this plan. This plan is a cash balance plan under which each participant s benefit is determined based on annual pay credits and interest credits made to each participant s notional account. Effective December 31, 2005, the benefits earned under the Pension Account Plan were frozen. As a result, no additional pay credits have been made to accounts since that date. Interest credits will continue to be made until benefits are paid.

Under the Pension Account Plan, interest credits are based on the notional account balance on the last day of the prior plan year and the plan s interest credit rate. The plan s interest credit rate for a given year, which is specified by the plan documents, equals the average 12-month Treasury Bill rate during December of the preceding plan year plus 0.5%, subject to an 8.0% maximum rate. The interest credit rate for this plan during 2017 was 1.16%.

Participants may choose among several forms of annuity for payment of their benefits, or may elect to receive their benefit in a lump sum. The annual single life annuity value is equal to the cash balance account at retirement age divided by a plan-specified annuity conversion factor. All annuity forms of payment are actuarially equivalent to the single life annuity. The lump sum payment amount is the greater of the participant s cash balance account and the present value of the participant s single life annuity benefit.

401(k) Employee Savings Plan. We maintain a tax-qualified defined contribution plan for substantially all employees, with eligibility beginning as of the first day of the calendar month following their hire date. Eligible employees may contribute from 1% to 50% of their annual compensation to the plan on a pre-tax basis each year, subject to limitations imposed by the Internal Revenue Code (for 2017 the limit was \$18,000 exclusive of any catch-up contributions). Each year, we match 100% of a participant s contributions up to 4% of earnings (as defined in the plan). All of the named executive officers are eligible to participate in the 401(k) Employee Savings Plan.

Employees receive an employer retirement contribution to their accounts under the plan, in an annual amount equal to 3% of the employee s eligible earnings. Employees must satisfy certain eligibility requirements in order to qualify for this benefit. All of the named executive officers were eligible to receive the employer retirement contribution under the 401(k) Employee Savings Plan for 2017.

Non-Qualified Savings and Retirement Plan. We maintain a Non-Qualified Savings and Retirement Plan which covers certain eligible employees who are also eligible to participate in the 401(k) Employee Savings Plan. Eligible employees (including all named executive officers) may contribute from 1% to 50% of their annual salary and STIP Bonus on a pre-tax basis each year without regard to Internal Revenue Code limits. The plan allows a participant to defer amounts on a non-tax-qualified basis whether or not he or she is eligible (or elects) to contribute to the 401(k) Employee Savings Plan.

The Non-Qualified Savings and Retirement Plan includes an employer match feature that is substantially similar to the match feature in the 401(k) Employee Savings Plan. Matching contributions are made in the form of credits to the Non-Qualified Savings and Retirement Plan participant s account under the plan. The match is equal to the lesser of 4% of the participant s eligible compensation, or the amount of the participant s actual contribution to the Non-Qualified Savings and Retirement Plan for the applicable year. The amount of our matching contributions for a

participant in the Non-Qualified Savings and Retirement Plan is offset by the maximum amount of matching contributions the participant could have received under the 401(k) Employee Savings Plan.

51

Employees who are eligible to participate in the Non-Qualified Savings and Retirement Plan receive a restoration contribution to their account under the Non-Qualified Savings and Retirement Plan, in an annual amount equal to 3% of the employee s eligible earnings in excess of applicable Internal Revenue Code limits. Each of the named executive officers was eligible to receive this contribution with respect to 2017.

Chittenden Corporation Supplemental Executive Savings Plan. The Chittenden Corporation Supplemental Executive Savings Plan is a non-qualified defined contribution plan which became frozen to future contributions at the end of 2007. Senior executives of Chittenden Corporation were eligible to make salary deferral elections pursuant to this plan. No named executive officer other than Messrs. Barnes and Powlus has any balances credited to this plan.

The following table sets forth information regarding the Non-Qualified Savings and Retirement Plan and (in the case of Messrs. Barnes and Powlus) the Chittenden Corporation Supplemental Executive Savings Plan. Messrs. Rosato, Tengel and Walters do not participate in the Chittenden Corporation Supplemental Executive Savings Plan.

Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation for 2017

Name	Cor	xecutive atributions Last FY (\$)	Co	Registrant ntributions Last FY (\$)		Aggregate Earnings in Last FY (\$)	With	gregate ndrawals/ butions (\$)	F	Aggregate Balance at ast FYE (\$)
John P. Barnes,										
Non-Qualified Savings & Retirement Plan	\$	333,008	\$	134,488	\$	197,943	\$		\$	5,210,106
John P. Barnes, Chittenden	·	,	·	- ,		- · ,			·	-, -,
Corp. Supp. Exec. Savings	\$		\$		\$	3,248	\$		¢	92.490
Plan Lee C. Powlus,	Ф		Ф		Ф	3,248	Ф		\$	82,480
Non-Qualified Savings &										
Retirement Plan	\$	110,780	\$	42,208	\$	73,335	\$		\$	1,933,963
Lee C. Powlus, Chittenden										
Corp. Supp. Exec. Savings										
Plan	\$		\$		\$	767	\$		\$	19,649
R. David Rosato	\$	93,318	\$	25,328	\$	34,905	\$		\$	945,682
Jeffrey J. Tengel	\$	33,694	\$	27,295	\$	18,073	\$		\$	487,796
Kirk W. Walters	\$	36,014	\$	44,124	\$	23,376	\$		\$	634,424

A portion of the amounts shown in this table in the column headed Executive Contributions in Last FY are also reported and included in the Salary column as compensation for 2017 in the Summary Compensation Table.

Amounts shown in this table in the column headed Registrant Contributions in Last FY are also reported and included in the All Other Compensation column as compensation for 2017 in the Summary Compensation Table to the extent they constitute employer matching credits made pursuant to the plan during 2017, but are not included in the Summary Compensation Table to the extent they constitute retirement credits made in 2017 with respect to services rendered in 2016 for those named executive officers who were eligible to receive such credits under this plan.

The Aggregate Earnings in Last FY column reported in this table include the following amounts that are included in the Summary Compensation Table under Change in Pension Value and Nonqualified Deferred Compensation

Earnings: for Mr. Barnes, \$3,700 earned under the Chittenden Corporation Supplemental Executive Savings Plan and \$83,047 earned under the Non-Qualified Savings and Retirement Plan; for Mr. Powlus, \$800 earned under the Chittenden Corporation Supplemental Executive Savings Plan and \$30,588 earned under the Non-Qualified Savings and Retirement Plan; for Mr. Rosato, \$14,408; for Mr. Tengel, \$7,460; and for Mr. Walters, \$9,649, all earned under the Non-Qualified Savings and Retirement Plan.

The Aggregate Balance at Last FYE column reported in this table includes the following amounts that were previously reported in the Summary Compensation Table as 2016 and 2015 compensation: for Mr. Barnes,

52

\$1,090 under the Chittenden Supplemental Executive Savings Plan and \$310,421 under the Non-Qualified Savings and Retirement Plan; for Mr. Powlus, \$257 under the Chittenden Supplemental Executive Savings Plan and \$97,841 under the Non-Qualified Savings and Retirement Plan; for Mr. Rosato, \$54,329; for Mr. Tengel, \$56,155; and for Mr. Walters, \$64,073, each under the Non-Qualified Savings and Retirement Plan.

Balances credited to a participant s account under the Non-Qualified Savings and Retirement Plan are credited with interest at a fixed rate set by the Treasury and Finance Committee. During 2017, this rate was 3.951% which is equal to the average of the yield for each of the 12 months ended September 30, 2016 for debt obligations having a 15-year maturity issued by A-rated U.S. Banks, as published by Bloomberg (screen reference key BVCSUA15). This rate is subject to review and revision by the Treasury and Finance Committee on an annual basis.

Non-Qualified Savings and Retirement Plan balances are distributable at the executive s election (a) in a lump sum, or (b) in annual installments over a five- or ten- year period. The lump sum payment or the first installment payment will be made no earlier than the first payroll period in the seventh month following the executive s termination of employment unless a later payment or commencement date is required for compliance with Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code. Participants may choose different payout options for balances attributable to salary deferrals and retirement credits prior to 2013 and for balances attributable to salary deferrals and retirement credits in each year thereafter.

Interest credits are made to participants—accounts under the Chittenden Corporation Supplemental Executive Savings Plan in the same manner and at the same rate as under the Non-Qualified Savings and Retirement Plan. Plan balances are distributable in a lump sum or in approximately equal annual installments over a period not to exceed 11 years, as elected by the executive. The participant may elect to have payments commence on one of the following dates: the first day of the month following six months after his severance date; the later of six months after his severance date or the beginning of the following calendar year; or at the participant—s attainment of the age specified in his distribution election form. A participant may change his payout election from time to time in accordance with the provisions of the plan, but may not accelerate the payment date.

Employee Stock Ownership Plan. In 2007, we established the People s United Financial, Inc. Employee Stock Ownership Plan, or ESOP. The ESOP is a tax-qualified, broad-based employee benefit program. The ESOP purchased 10,453,575 shares of our common stock in the open market in April 2007, using the proceeds of a loan we made to the ESOP. All of the purchased shares were initially pledged as security for the repayment of that loan. As the loan is paid down, a portion of these shares are released for allocation to participants in the ESOP. Approximately 348,453 shares were released for allocation to participants accounts on December 29, 2017, with an equal number of shares scheduled to be released for allocation on an annual basis until all shares have been released.

The number of shares allocated to each ESOP participant at year-end is determined by comparing the participant s annual earnings (up to \$265,000 for 2016) to the annual earnings of all other eligible participants. On January 25, 2017, each named executive officer received an allocation of approximately 303 shares with a value of \$5,780 with respect to the 2016 calendar year.

Shares allocated to the accounts of ESOP participants are forfeited to the extent those shares are not vested at the time the participant s employment is terminated. Forfeited shares may be used to defray expenses of operating the ESOP or, at management s discretion, may be reallocated to the accounts of the remaining participants in the plan. Management has elected to use forfeited shares to defray ESOP expenses.

Shares allocated to the named executive officers accounts are shown in the table entitled Grant of Plan-Based Awards, and the value of those shares as of the date they were allocated is included in the Stock Awards column in the

Summary Compensation Table.

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control

The following summaries set forth potential amounts payable to the named executive officers upon termination of employment or in the event we undergo a change in control. The term change in control or change of control is defined in each of the agreements or plans discussed below. While there are some slight differences in the wording, a change in control will generally result in the case of (1) certain mergers, consolidations and recapitalizations in which a majority of our shares or voting power is not held in the same proportion as prior to the transaction, (2) sale of all or substantially all of our assets, and the liquidation or dissolution of People s United; (3) any person (with certain exceptions) acquiring beneficial ownership of securities having 25% or more of the voting power of our outstanding securities; and (4) a change (with certain exceptions) in a majority of the members of our board of directors.

Employment Agreements. None of the named executive officers is a party to an employment agreement with us.

Change in Control Agreements. We have agreements with each named executive officer providing certain benefits in the event the executive s employment is terminated under specified circumstances and within a specified period of time following a change in control. Each such agreement (a Change in Control Agreement) remains in effect until the executive s employment is terminated prior to the occurrence of a change in control, or termination of the executive s employment following the protection period following a change in control.

If an executive s employment is terminated without cause, or the executive resigns for good reason (each as defined in the Change in Control Agreement), within three years following the occurrence of a change in control at a time when the Change in Control Agreement is in effect, we will make payments and provide benefits to the covered officer as follows:

Cash severance equal to three times the sum of (a) the covered officer s annual base salary as in effect immediately prior to termination of employment plus (b) the target amount of the covered officer s annual cash bonus for the year prior to the year in which the change in control occurs;

A pro-rated portion of the covered officer s target annual cash bonus for the year prior to the year in which the change in control occurs;

An amount equal to the retirement benefits the covered officer would have earned if he had remained employed for two additional years following the date his employment is terminated, under our qualified and non-qualified retirement plans in which he participates; and

Continued participation for two years by the executive, his spouse and his dependents in our group health plans in which he participates, or substantially equivalent medical coverage if the covered officer cannot continue participation in our plans.

As a condition to receiving any of the payments or benefits described above, the covered officer must first sign and deliver a release of claims to us.

The Change in Control Agreements are not employment agreements. We may terminate any covered officer s employment at any time, without triggering any payment obligations under these agreements.

In March 2010, the board of directors indicated that it does not intend to approve inclusion of excise tax gross-up provisions in any future change in control agreements or employment agreements that include change in control provisions. The Change in Control Agreements to which each of the named executive officers is a party do not include excise tax gross-up provisions.

Long-Term Incentive Plan. The 2014 Long-Term Incentive Plan, amended and restated in 2017, provides for discretionary awards of options to purchase common stock, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock awards, and other performance-based awards to eligible officers and employees as determined by a committee of the board of directors consisting of two or more outside directors. The Long-Term Incentive Plan is not subject to ERISA and is not a tax-qualified plan.

54

Under the 2014 Long-Term Incentive Plan, upon the occurrence of a change in control, all awards previously made pursuant to the plan or any predecessor to the plan (whether cash-based or equity-based) are subject to double trigger provisions. In the event of a change of control under the agreements, if the awards are not assumed or converted upon a change in control, the awards will vest immediately. Performance share awards will vest pro-rata based on the fractional part of the performance period that has occurred at the time of the change in control and at target performance.

2007 Recognition and Retention Plan. This plan provided for discretionary awards in the form of restricted stock to our eligible directors, officers and employees. The Recognition and Retention Plan is not subject to ERISA and is not a tax-qualified plan. Upon the occurrence of a change in control, all awards of restricted stock previously made pursuant to the plan will immediately vest, if not already vested in accordance with their terms. No new awards may be granted pursuant to this plan.

2007 Stock Option Plan. This plan provided for discretionary awards in the form of stock options to our eligible directors, officers and employees. The Stock Option Plan is not subject to ERISA and is not a tax-qualified plan. Upon the occurrence of a change in control, all awards of stock options previously made pursuant to the plan will immediately vest, if not already vested in accordance with their terms. No new awards may be granted pursuant to this plan. All of our NEOs are fully vested in shares allocated to their accounts under this plan.

Employee Stock Ownership Plan. This plan, which is described earlier in this proxy statement, is a tax-qualified plan subject to ERISA. Upon the occurrence of a change in control, all shares of our common stock previously credited to participants accounts will immediately vest, if not already vested in accordance with the normal vesting schedule provided in the plan.

The following tables set forth the estimated value of the payments and benefits that would have been paid to the named executive officers under the terms of the Long-Term Incentive Plan and all predecessor equity-based incentive compensation plans, and the change in control agreements for each named executive officer, in each case assuming the event giving rise to the payment occurred on December 29, 2017, which was the last business day of 2017. Information presented in these tables reflects the following:

Amounts shown do not include any proceeds from employer-paid life insurance policies.

The annual cash incentive amount actually paid to each named executive officer for 2017 is shown in the Summary Compensation Table in the column headed Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation.

Equity values are based on the 18.70 closing price of our common stock on December 29, 2017.

With the exception of Messrs. Barnes and Powlus who are participants in the Chittenden Corporation Pension Account Plan, none of the named executive officers is a participant in any of our defined benefit pension plans.

For all named executive officers other than Mr. Walters, health benefits continue for two additional years in the event of a change in control. The amounts shown assume 2017 rates.

Under the terms of Mr. Walters initial offer of employment, his health benefits generally continue until he is eligible for Medicare. The amounts shown assume 2017 rates.

55

Amounts shown for the change-in-control value of restricted stock awards and unexercisable options may differ slightly from amounts calculated by reference to the table entitled Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End due to rounding.

			Je	ohn P. Barnes		
Benefit	Voluntary	For Cause	Death	Disability	Withou	at Cause Change in Control
Cash Severance	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$ 7,309,218
Annual Cash Incentive	\$	\$	\$ 1,056,006	\$1,056,006	\$	\$
Equity						
Performance Shares	\$	\$	\$ 2,588,622	\$ 2,588,622	\$	\$ 1,323,003
Restricted Stock	\$	\$	\$ 1,445,604	\$ 1,445,604	\$	\$ 1,445,604
Unexercisable Options	\$	\$	\$ 1,943,430	\$ 1,943,430	\$	\$ 1,943,430
Total Equity	\$	\$	\$ 5,977,656	\$5,977,656	\$	\$ 4,712,066
Retirement Benefits						
Defined Benefit Plans	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Defined Contribution						
Plans	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$ 125,478
Total Retirement Benefits	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$ 125,478
Other Benefits						
Health & Welfare	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$ 31,775
Outplacement	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$ 4,000
Total Other Benefits	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$ 35,775
Total Benefits	\$	\$	\$ 7,033,662	\$7,033,662	\$	\$ 12,182,538
				ee C. Powlus		
Benefit		For Cause	Death	Disability		it Cause Change in Control
Cash Severance	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$ 2,838,975
Annual Cash Incentive	\$	\$	\$ 377,638	\$ 377,638	\$	\$
Equity						
Performance Shares	\$	\$	\$ 589,387	\$ 589,387	\$	\$ 306,843
Restricted Stock	\$	\$	\$ 342,678	\$ 342,678	\$	\$ 342,678
Unexercisable Options	\$	\$	\$ 490,788	\$ 490,788	\$	\$ 490,788
Total Equity	\$	\$	\$ 1,422,853	\$1,422,852	\$	\$ 1,140,309
Retirement Benefits						
Defined Benefit Plans	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Defined Contribution						
Plans	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$ 50,321
Total Retirement Benefits	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$ 50,321

Other Benefits

Edgar Filing: People's United Financial, Inc. - Form DEF 14A

Health & Welfare	\$ \$	\$	\$	\$	\$ 29,202
Outplacement	\$ \$	\$	\$	\$	\$ 4,000
Total Other Benefits	\$ \$	\$	\$	\$	\$ 33,022
Total Benefits	\$ \$	\$ 1,800	,490 \$ 1,800,	490 \$	\$ 4,062,807

				-	_				
D 64	T 7 1 4	E C				vid Rosato	Wal A C	CI.	• • • • •
Benefit	Voluntary	For Cause		Death		Disability	Without Cause	Cha	nge in Control
Cash Severance	\$	\$	\$		\$		\$	\$	2,873,340
Annual Cash	ψ	Ψ	Ψ		ψ			Ψ	2,673,340
Incentive	\$	\$	\$	374,544	\$	374,544	\$	\$	
	·	•		,-		,-		·	
Equity Performance Shares	\$	\$	\$	587,778	\$	587,778	\$	\$	306,475
Restricted Stock	\$	\$	\$	341,930	\$	341,930	\$ \$	\$ \$	341,930
Unexercisable	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	541,750	Ψ	341,730	Ψ	Ψ	341,730
Options	\$	\$	\$	491,537	\$	491,537	\$	\$	491,537
- F	т	*	_	,	_	., -,,	*	,	
Total Equity	\$	\$	\$ 1	1,421,245	\$	1,421,245	\$	\$	1,139,942
Retirement Benefits									
Defined Benefit Plans	\$	\$	\$		\$		\$	\$	
Defined Contribution	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ		Ψ		Ψ	Ψ	
Plans	\$	\$	\$		\$		\$	\$	50,123
Total Retirement									
Benefits	\$	\$	\$		\$		\$	\$	50,123
Other Benefits									
Health & Welfare	\$	\$	\$		\$		\$	\$	34,918
Outplacement	\$	\$	\$		\$		\$	\$	4,000
Total Other Benefits	\$	\$	\$	1 705 700	\$	1.705.700	\$	\$	38,918
Total Benefits	\$	\$	\$.	1,795,789	\$	1,795,789	\$	\$	4,102,322
				Je	effre	ey J. Tengel			
Benefit	Voluntary	For Cause		Death		Disability	Without Cause	Cha	nge in Control
Cash Severance	\$	\$	\$		\$	J	\$	\$	2,964,203
Annual Cash									
Incentive	\$	\$	\$	386,388	\$	386,388	\$	\$	
Equity									
Performance Shares	\$	\$	\$	661,494	\$	661,494	\$	\$	344,910
Restricted Stock	\$	\$	\$	384,809	\$	384,809	\$	\$	384,809
Unexercisable									
Options	\$	\$	\$	553,184	\$	553,184	\$	\$	553,184
Total Equity	\$	\$	\$ 1	1,599,486	\$	1,599,486	\$	\$	1,282,903
Retirement Benefits									
Defined Benefit Plans	\$	\$	\$		\$		\$	\$	
Defined Contribution									
Plans	\$	\$	\$		\$		\$	\$	51,708
T . I D .:	ф	¢	ф		ф		¢	ф	51.700
Total Retirement	\$	\$	\$		\$		\$	\$	51,708

Edgar Filing: People's United Financial, Inc. - Form DEF 14A

Benefits					
Other Benefits					
Health & Welfare	\$ \$	\$	\$	\$ \$	29,665
Outplacement	\$ \$	\$	\$	\$ \$	4,000
Total Other Benefits	\$ \$	\$	\$	\$ \$	33,665
Total Benefits	\$ \$	\$ 1,985,875	\$ 1,985,875	\$ \$	4,332,479

		Kirk W. Walters							
Benefit	Voluntary	For Cause	Death	Disability	Without Cause	e Chai	nge in Control		
Cash Severance	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	3,056,940		
Annual Cash									
Incentive	\$	\$	\$ 421,362	\$ 421,362	\$	\$			
Equity									
Performance									
Shares	\$	\$	\$ 534,353	\$ 534,353	\$	\$	278,616		
Restricted Stock	\$	\$	\$ 310,850	\$ 310,850	\$	\$	310,850		
Unexercisable									
Options	\$	\$	\$ 446,850	\$ 446,850	\$	\$	446,850		
Total Equity	\$	\$	\$ 1,292,053	\$ 1,292,053	\$	\$	1,036,316		
Retirement									
Benefits									
Defined Benefit									
Plans	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$			
Defined									
Contribution Plans	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	52,877		
Total Retirement									
Benefits	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	52,877		
Other Benefits									
Health & Welfare	\$44,169	\$	\$	\$ 44,169	\$ 44,169	\$	44,169		
Outplacement	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	4,000		
	·		•		·	·	,		
Total Other									
Benefits	\$ 44,169	\$	\$	\$ 44,169	\$ 44,169	\$	48,189		
Total Benefits	\$44,169	\$	\$ 1,713,415	\$ 1,757,583	\$ 44,169	\$	4,194,301		

PROPOSAL II: NON-BINDING ADVISORY VOTE TO APPROVE COMPENSATION OF NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

We are seeking a non-binding advisory vote to approve the compensation of our named executive officers as described under the section Compensation Discussion and Analysis and the accompanying tables and text regarding named executive officer compensation in this proxy statement.

This proposal gives you an opportunity to express your views on the compensation of our named executive officers. Your vote is advisory, and it will not be binding upon the board of directors. However, the Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee expects to take the outcome of the vote into account when making future executive officer compensation decisions.

The objectives of our executive compensation programs are described in detail in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis. We believe that our compensation policies and decisions are designed to implement a performance-based pay philosophy, are aligned with the long-term interests of our shareholders and are competitive.

We are presenting this proposal, which gives you as a shareholder the opportunity to approve (on a non-binding, advisory basis) the compensation of our named executive officers as disclosed in this proxy statement by voting for or against the following resolution:

RESOLVED, that the shareholders approve the compensation of the named executive officers of People s United, as disclosed in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis, the compensation tables, and the related disclosure contained in People s United s proxy statement for its 2018 annual meeting.

The board of directors recommends that shareholders vote for approval of the named executive officers compensation in accordance with the foregoing resolution.

PAY RATIO DISCLOSURE

As required by Section 953(b) of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, and Item 402(u) of Regulation S-K as adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission in August 2015 (Item 402(u)), the Company is providing the following reasonable estimate of the ratio of the median of the annual total compensation of all of our employees except John P. Barnes, our President and Chief Executive Officer (CEO), to the annual total compensation of Mr. Barnes, calculated in a manner consistent with Item 402(u) of Regulation S-K. For 2017, our last completed fiscal year:

The median of the annual total compensation of all of our employees, excluding our CEO, was \$61,039.

The annual total compensation of our CEO was \$5,124,582.

The ratio of the annual total compensation of our CEO to the median of the annual total compensation of all of our employees except our CEO was 84 to 1.

We determined that, as of December 31, 2017, our employee population consisted of approximately 5,584 individuals, including full-time, part-time and temporary employees (as reported in Item 1, Business, in our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 1, 2018), all of whom were located in the United States.

To identify the median employee from our employee population, we obtained the following compensation data from our internal payroll records for each employee in our employee population: (1) actual gross wages paid in 2017 which was comprised of (a) base pay plus overtime if applicable, (b) paid time off and holiday time, (c) incentive pay, (d) taxable stock events, and (e) any other income; (2) employer paid retirement benefits (*i.e.*, 401(k) Employee Savings Plan including for eligible employees an employer retirement contribution, and Employee Stock Ownership Plan); and (3) a reasonable estimate of the employer paid health, welfare & life insurance (the sum of 1, 2 and 3 for each such employee is such employee s 2017 Compensation). We then ranked the 2017 Compensation received by all of the employees in our employee population other than our CEO to determine our median employee. Once we identified our median employee, we combined all of the elements of such employee s compensation for 2017 in accordance with the requirements of Item 402(c)(2)(x) of Regulation S-K for the Summary Compensation Table. With respect to the annual total compensation of our CEO, we used the amount reported in the Total column of our Summary Compensation Table as set forth above in this proxy statement.

PROPOSAL III: RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Audit Committee has appointed the firm of KPMG LLP, certified public accountants, as our independent registered public accounting firm for the year ending December 31, 2018. KPMG LLP has served as our independent registered public accounting firm since 2007, and as the independent registered public accounting firm for the Bank since 1986. In taking this action, the Audit Committee reviewed the firm s professional competence, proposed audit

scope and related fees, and the types of non-audit services rendered by the firm and related fees. Fees billed to us by KPMG LLP (which includes fees billed to our affiliates) for professional services rendered during each of the two most recent fiscal years were as follows:

Audit Fees

Fees for the integrated audit of our annual consolidated financial statements and internal control over financial reporting, reviews of interim consolidated financial statements included in our Form 10-Q filings, and other audit services totaled \$2,800,000 and \$2,800,000 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Audit-Related Fees

Fees for assurance and related services reasonably related to the audit or review of our financial statements and those of our subsidiaries (to the extent not classified as Audit Fees) totaled none in 2016 and in 2017.

59

Tax Fees

We did not pay any fees for tax compliance, tax advice or tax planning services to KPMG LLP either in 2017 or 2016.

All Other Fees

KPMG LLP did not provide or bill for any products and professional services other than those included in the three categories listed above either in 2017 or 2016.

The Audit Committee has sole authority to appoint our independent registered public accounting firm. In making this appointment, the Audit Committee carefully considered the firm squalifications as our auditors. This included a review of its performance in prior years, as well as its reputation for integrity and competence in the fields of accounting and auditing. The Committee has expressed its satisfaction with KPMG LLP in all of these respects. In addition, the Audit Committee considered the matters discussed below under the heading Audit Committee Report. The Audit Committee also considered factors relating to the independence of KPMG LLP, including whether KPMG LLP s provision of non-audit services (i.e., services giving rise to fees other than the audit fees disclosed above) is compatible with maintaining KPMG LLP s independence.

By resolution adopted on February 15, 2018, the Audit Committee has delegated to William F. Cruger, Jr. (Chairman of the Audit Committee and an independent director under applicable listing standards) the authority to pre-approve the rendering of audit services and permissible non-audit services by our independent registered public accounting firm. Mr. Cruger is required to report any exercise of this authority to the full Audit Committee at its next scheduled meeting, and to seek the Audit Committee s ratification of any action so taken.

In recognition of the important role of the independent registered public accounting firm, the board of directors has determined that the appointment of KPMG LLP should be submitted to the shareholders for ratification.

Representatives of KPMG LLP are expected to be present at the annual meeting. They will have an opportunity to make a statement and will be available to respond to appropriate questions from shareholders present at the annual meeting.

The board of directors recommends that shareholders vote for ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP as the independent registered public accounting firm for People s United for the year ending December 31, 2018.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee has: (1) reviewed and discussed our audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017 with management of People s United; (2) discussed with KPMG LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm, the matters required to be discussed by Auditing Standard No. 16 (Communications with Audit Committees); (3) received the written disclosures and the letter from KPMG LLP required by applicable professional standards concerning auditor independence; and (4) discussed with KPMG LLP its independence.

Based on the review and discussions referred to in the preceding paragraph, the Audit Committee recommended to the board of directors that the audited consolidated financial statements of People s United as of and for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017 be included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Audit Committee

William F. Cruger, Jr., Chairman

George P. Carter

Jerry Franklin

Janet M. Hansen

Mark W. Richards

60

OTHER MATTERS

The board of directors knows of no other business to be presented at the annual meeting. In the event that matters not known at this time should come before the meeting, the form of proxy confers certain discretionary authority with respect to these matters and, unless such authority is withdrawn on the form of proxy, it is the intention of the persons named in the proxy to vote in accordance with their judgment on these matters.

Submission of Shareholder Proposals

In order to be considered for inclusion in our proxy materials for the annual meeting of shareholders in 2019, we must receive shareholder proposals at our principal executive offices no later than November 7, 2018. Under Securities and Exchange Commission rules relating to the exercise of discretionary voting authority when a shareholder commences his or her own proxy solicitation or intends to present a proposal from the floor of the shareholders meeting, shareholders are advised that under the advance notice provisions of our bylaws a shareholder proposal will be considered untimely, with respect to the annual meeting in 2018, unless received by us between December 21, 2017 and January 20, 2018, which is between one-hundred and twenty and ninety days in advance of the anniversary of the 2017 annual meeting. Shareholder proposals and other advance notices must be submitted to People s United Financial, Inc., 850 Main Street, Bridgeport, Connecticut 06604, Attention: Corporate Secretary.

Availability of Form 10-K

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017 is available through the Securities and Exchange Commission s website on the internet at www.sec.gov. You may obtain a copy of this report without charge by sending a written request to: Andrew Hersom, Investor Relations, People s United Financial, Inc., 850 Main Street, 15th Floor, Bridgeport, CT 06604. This report will also be available on our website, www.peoples.com, without charge.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Robert E. Trautmann, Secretary

61

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials

for the Shareholder Meeting to be Held on April 19, 2018

The proxy statement and Annual Report on Form 10-K are available at:

www.proxyvote.com

Meeting information:

When: 10:00 a.m. Eastern time on April 19, 2018

Where: 850 Main Street, Bridgeport, Connecticut

Why: To vote on the following items:

Election of directors.

Non-binding advisory vote to approve compensation of named executive officers.

Ratification of appointment of KPMG LLP as independent registered public accounting firm for People s United Financial, Inc.

Management recommends a vote for each of the nominees for election named in the proxy statement, for approval of the compensation of the named executive officers, and for approval of KPMG as the Company s auditors. Please read the proxy statement for more information about each of these items.

If you wish to vote electronically or by telephone, the control/identification number and other information you will need is printed on the proxy card that is enclosed with this proxy statement.

You may attend the meeting and vote in person if you choose to do so. The proxy statement includes important information about the requirements you will have to follow in order to attend the meeting in person. If you need directions, please call Investor Relations at 203-338-7228.

PEOPLE S UNITED FINANCIAL, INC.

850 MAIN STREET

BRIDGEPORT, CT 06604-4913

VOTE BY INTERNET - www.proxyvote.com or scan the QR Barcode above

Use the Internet to transmit your voting instructions and for electronic delivery of information up until 11:59 P.M. Eastern Time the day before the cut-off date or meeting date. Follow the instructions to obtain your records and to create an electronic voting instruction form.

ELECTRONIC DELIVERY OF FUTURE PROXY MATERIALS

If you would like to reduce the costs incurred by our company in mailing proxy materials, you can consent to receiving all future proxy statements, proxy cards and annual reports electronically via e-mail or the Internet. To sign up for electronic delivery, please follow the instructions above to vote using the Internet and, when prompted, indicate that you agree to receive or access proxy materials electronically in future years.

VOTE BY PHONE - 1-800-690-6903

Use any touch-tone telephone to transmit your voting instructions up until 11:59 P.M. Eastern Time the day before the cut-off date or meeting date. Have your proxy card in hand when you call and then follow the instructions.

VOTE BY MAIL

Mark, sign and date your proxy card and return it in the postage-paid envelope we have provided or return it to Vote Processing, c/o Broadridge, 51 Mercedes Way, Edgewood, NY 11717.

TO VOTE, MARK BLOCKS BELOW IN BLUE OR BLACK INK AS FOLLOWS:

E38386-P01723 KEEP THIS PORTION FOR YOUR RECORDS

DETACH AND RETURN THIS PORTION ONLY

THIS PROXY CARD IS VALID ONLY WHEN SIGNED AND DATED.

PEOPLE S UNITED FINANCIAL, INC.

The Board of Directors recommends you vote FOR the following:

1. Election of Directors

Nominees: For Against Abstain

- 1a. John P. Barnes
- 1b. Collin P. Baron
- 1c. Kevin T. Bottomley
- 1d. George P. Carter
- 1e. Jane Chwick
- 1f. William F. Cruger, Jr.
- 1g. John K. Dwight
- 1h. Jerry Franklin
- 1i. Janet M. Hansen
- 1j. Nancy McAllister
- 1k. Mark W. Richards
- 11. Kirk W. Walters

The Board of Directors recommends you vote FOR proposals 2 and 3:

For Against Abstain

- 2. Approve the advisory (non-binding) resolution relating to the compensation of the named executive officers as disclosed in the proxy statement.
- 3. Ratify KPMG LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2018.

NOTE: Such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

Please sign exactly as your name(s) appear(s) hereon. When signing as attorney, executor, administrator, or other fiduciary, please give full title as such. Joint owners should each sign personally. All holders must sign. If a corporation or partnership, please sign in full corporate or partnership name by authorized officer.

Signature [PLEASE SIGN WITHIN BOX] Date Signature (Joint Owners)

Date

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting:

The Notice and Proxy Statement and Annual Report are available at www.proxyvote.com.

E38387-P01723

PEOPLE S UNITED FINANCIAL, INC.

Annual Meeting of Shareholders

April 19, 2018 10:00 AM

This proxy is solicited by the Board of Directors

The shareholder(s) hereby appoint(s) George P. Carter, Nancy McAllister, and Mark W. Richards, or any two of them as proxies, each with the power to appoint his or her substitute, and hereby authorize(s) them to represent and to vote, as designated on the reverse side of this proxy card, all of the shares of Common Stock of PEOPLE S UNITED FINANCIAL, INC. that the shareholder(s) is/are entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held at 10:00 AM, EDT on April 19, 2018, at 850 Main Street, Bridgeport, CT 06604, and any adjournment or postponement thereof.

This proxy, when properly executed, will be voted in the manner directed herein. If no such direction is made, this proxy will be voted in accordance with the Board of Directors recommendations.

Continued and to be signed on reverse side